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 1 P R O C E E D I N G S
 2 THE COURT:  Good morning.  All right.  We'll call 

 3 the case of Ansley versus Warren.  Is the plaintiff 

 4 ready?  

 5 MR.  LARGESS:  We are, Your Honor.

 6 THE COURT:  Is the defendant ready?  

 7 MR.  MAJMUNDAR:  Yes, Judge, we are.

 8 MS.  VYSOTSKAYA:  Yes, Your Honor.

 9 THE COURT:  The first thing I want to hear before 

10 we really get going on this is the intervening issue of 

11 those people who are wanting to intervene.  So who is 

12 here with regard to that?  

13 MR.  POTTER:  Your Honor, Robert Potter for Tim 

14 Moore, Speaker of the North Carolina House, and Phil 

15 Berger Pro Tem on behalf of the Legislature.

16 THE COURT:  So good to have you here.  

17 MR. SCHMID:  Daniel Schmid representing 

18 intervenor.  I'm here with my colleague Stewart Sloan.  

19 MR.  SLOAN:  Stuart Sloan, local counsel.  

20 MR. BOYLE:  Ellis Boyle on behalf of proposed 

21 intervenors Myrick, et cetera.

22 THE COURT:  Just to put on the record today, what 

23 is the attorney general not doing?  I'm sure you read all 

24 the filings that are rather voluminous.  You've created 

25 quite a bit of work for the Court.  What is the attorney 
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 1 not doing that you all need to intervene in this matter?  

 2 MR.  POTTER:  Your Honor, at least on behalf of 

 3 the legislative intervenors, I would say that it's just 

 4 repeated persistent public adverse statements against the 

 5 law.  You can't possibly represent it adequately if he is 

 6 such an outspoken, vocal critic of it.  I mean nobody 

 7 would ask that their -- would want to have an attorney 

 8 who's out on the courthouse steps talking about how 

 9 terrible they are and how bad the case is and then turn 

10 around and say well I'm your lawyer and you've got to 

11 stick with me.  So that is the -- that's the nub of the 

12 problem with the attorney general's representation.

13 THE COURT:  Didn't Judge Schroeder have this same 

14 issue down there in the Middle District though with the 

15 attorney general?  And it sounds like at least at the 

16 district level the attorney general did pretty good down 

17 there.

18 MR.  POTTER:  And which case are you.

19 THE COURT:  On the voter.  Voter IDs.

20 MR.  POTTER:  Oh I wasn't involved in that case 

21 Your Honor so I don't know.

22 THE COURT:  Okay.  

23 MR.  POTTER:  The Fourth Circuit of course has 

24 taken care of that.

25 THE COURT:  That's -- cases go up and the law 
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 1 comes down.  We just follow the law at the district court 

 2 level.  They tell us when we're wrong; they tell us and 

 3 we change.

 4 MR.  POTTER:  I think it's important to note you 

 5 know that the attorney general's statements weren't made 

 6 just when this was an idea.  They were made to the 

 7 associated press when the bill was passed they were 

 8 treated after the bill passed they were repeated this law 

 9 will probably be challenged constitutionally and he knew 

10 he was going to be the attorney representing it and yet 

11 he was making all these statements and at the same time 

12 saying I'm going to defend it.  You know, Mr.  Warren 

13 unfortunately doesn't have a lot of choice on who his 

14 lawyer is and the legislature has an adverse interest to 

15 what the attorney general is doing.  

16 THE COURT:  Thank you sir.  

17 MR. SCHMID:  (Inaudible.) 

18 COURT REPORTER:  You're going to have to get 

19 closer to a microphone, sir.  

20 MR.  SCHMID:  Daniel Schmid on behalf of proposed 

21 intervenor Bumgarner I think there's a material issue on 

22 what they're arguing Your Honor.  I think what the 

23 attorney general is putting forward is that this is some 

24 per missive legislative enactment and that that's all it 

25 is.  On behalf of the proposed intervenor Bumgarners her 
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 1 position has been add it's not one of strategic 

 2 differences it's a material difference in kind that this 

 3 is a constitutionally mandated protection that's been 

 4 trying under the First Amendment and others, and she also 

 5 has different interests that the attorney general doesn't 

 6 represent.  Namely, her own constitutional rights to free 

 7 expression, free exercise, due process, and the other 

 8 constitutionally guaranteed liberties that she raises in 

 9 her proposed intervention motion.  

10 And I think there's a difference there that the AG 

11 doesn't have an interest in representing.  These are 

12 personal freedoms that are enshrined to the constitution 

13 to her and if it's just per miss sieve what the 

14 legislature can permit or may allow it can take away 

15 subsequently.  If it's constitutionally mandated at the 

16 proposed intervenor Bumgarner argues, then it doesn't 

17 matter whether the AG abandons the defense tomorrow, 

18 whether he enters into some settlement discussions or 

19 some other type of alternative dispute resolution during 

20 the pendency of this while she's not an intervenor.  And 

21 those things can't happen if it's constitutionally 

22 mandated. 

23 If the constitution mandates then it doesn't 

24 matter who the next attorney general is.  It doesn't 

25 matter what the attorney general's position is going 
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 1 forward.  It doesn't matter if he opposes it if it's 

 2 constitutionally mandated as proposed intervenor 

 3 Bumgarner says.  If it stays, it will be proposed in the 

 4 text as well.  And I think this is where this may versus 

 5 must distinction comes in.  And I think that's critical 

 6 to proposed intervenor Bumgarner's position as to why the 

 7 attorney general can't adequately join the legislature 

 8 intervenor.  No one disputes we have an adequate 

 9 representation.  How can you have adequate representation 

10 to someone who's pope?  

11 It seems to me, Your Honor, we have a history, a 

12 track record here, of the attorney general abandoning 

13 positions he didn't support in previous litigation.  The 

14 marriage cases themselves, when it got down to subsequent 

15 pieces of the litigation, he abandoned the defense 

16 evidence.  So we have no guarantee that tomorrow proposed 

17 intervenor Bumgarner will have any adequate protection 

18 for her constitutional liberties when there is a track 

19 record and when there's open opposition to the position 

20 she holds.  

21 So I think intervention here is required because 

22 those liberties need a defense.  She is entitled to 

23 participate in a record development that will aid this 

24 court in seeing why it is mandated versus why it's 

25 permissive.  I don't think the attorney general could put 
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 1 forward the record evidence that she can put forward 

 2 concerning her own constitutional liberties and why this 

 3 bill is required to accommodate them.  And for all those 

 4 reasons I think the attorney general can't adequately 

 5 represent her interest and we would ask that you grant 

 6 intervention.

 7 THE COURT:  Thank you.  

 8 MR.  BOYLE:  Your Honor, thank you.  

 9 THE COURT:  Yes, sir.

10 MR.  BOYLE:  Even more compelling than the prior 

11 argument you just heard about the attorney general's 

12 inability to adequately represent a magistrate's 

13 interests here.  Two of my clients Mr.  Holland and Mrs. 

14 Myrick are actively engaged in litigation against the 

15 attorney general as we speak today in matters in which 

16 Judge Warren is the defendant and is taking a directly 

17 adverse and adversarial position against my two client s.  

18 Mr.  Holland is pursuing a lawsuit against --

19 THE COURT:  What are your claims in that case?  

20 MR.  BOYLE:  Yes, sir.  Mr.  Holland and another 

21 magistrate who resigned in October of 2014 are pursuing 

22 North Carolina constitutional claims in a North Carolina 

23 state court action against the AOC.  That case is 

24 currently on appeal at the court of appeals in North 

25 Carolina pending resolution of a standing issue.  Mr.  
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 1 Holland has also filed an EEOC complaint against the AOC.  

 2 Ms. Myrick has not only filed an EEOC complaint, but it 

 3 has been referred to an administrative law judge under 

 4 GERA, the Government Employee Rights Act of 1991, and is 

 5 currently set for trial on September 7th.  We're actually 

 6 filing a Motion for Summary Judgment in that case on 

 7 behalf of Ms. Myrick today.  So the attorney general 

 8 cannot take positions in this case or should not I should 

 9 say that are in contravention to positions that the 

10 attorney general has taken the same with Judge Warren 

11 cannot take positions in this case that he has taken the 

12 opposite position in those other cases.  So my clients, 

13 the proposed intervenors have a unique ability to bring 

14 their perspective and it mirrors what Mr. Schmid was just 

15 talking about with the permissive versus constitutional 

16 -- constitutionally required accommodation issue.  On 

17 that particular issue the attorney general and this 

18 defendant cannot adequately represent my client's 

19 interests.  

20 THE COURT:  Okay thank you very much.  Attorney 

21 Joan want to say anything right now?  I know you're not 

22 opposing the intervention.  You take no position on it is 

23 that right.

24 MR.  MAJMUNDAR:  Just briefly Your Honor we're 

25 here not on behalf of the attorney general but rather on 
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 1 behalf of defendant and in that regard we're satisfied 

 2 with the order that was issued by the magistrate judge 

 3 regarding the proposed motions to intervene.  

 4 THE COURT:  All right.  Let me hear from the 

 5 plaintiffs.

 6 MR.  LARGESS:  Mr.  Sussman.

 7 MR.  SUSSMAN:  Good morning, Your Honor, 

 8 Jacob Sussman for the plaintiffs.  As we've laid out in 

 9 our pleadings Your Honor we believe that under 24(a) and 

10 under 24(b) these proposed intervenors have not made a 

11 showing a sufficient showing that they should be 

12 intervening.  We've seen the motion to dismiss filed on 

13 behalf of defendant Warren.  It covers all the parent 

14 bases that the proposed intervenors are suggesting that 

15 they would bring to bear in this lawsuit.  There is no 

16 daylight in that regard with what is before this court.  

17 I would note that -- I think it's note worthy that the 

18 motions to intervene and the assertions of inadequate 

19 representation by the attorney general's office were made 

20 prior to any filing done by the attorney general's office 

21 based on out of court public statements by attorney 

22 general cooper who I imagine is not going to be appearing 

23 in this matter personally is not going to be making 

24 arguments personally on behalf of defendant Warren.  And 

25 to take those political matters and insert them into this 
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 1 litigation is of no moment and doesn't speak to any real 

 2 inadequacy.  It's complete speculation.

 3 Just briefly and we laid this out in our response 

 4 that we filed on Friday, Your Honor.  The attorney 

 5 general's office is legally obligated to defend this 

 6 lawsuit.  They are doing that.  Taking in order the 

 7 issues raised by Berger.

 8 THE COURT:  What they're worried about is you will 

 9 damn them with fake praise.  They're worried he's going 

10 to just sort of do it and say okay, that's my argument.

11 MR.  SUSSMAN:  Your Honor, I think the proof is in 

12 the pudding.  First of all, just look what's been filed.

13 THE COURT:  I agree.  I agree it's very strong.  

14 In fact, there's going to be -- I'm really going to have 

15 to -- I'm really going to have to hear what the standing 

16 in this case is.  That's where the Court has got some 

17 real problems with plaintiff's case in this.  The 

18 attorney general's office is the one that made the strong 

19 argument on standing in this case.  That's -- I mean 

20 before you get to things you've got to have something 

21 there to be some kind of standing.  And if it was just 

22 taxpayer standing, and we can get into that, I think 

23 probably everybody in this room's got a lawsuit they can 

24 bring against North Carolina because they can probably 

25 figure money is being spent and they don't like the way 
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 1 it's being spent.  I know I've got a few items but I 

 2 can't bring those.

 3 MR.  SUSSMAN:  Yes, Your Honor.  And just -- and, 

 4 briefly, I think that the Court raises what's the 

 5 litigation in the Middle District in the voting case.  

 6 The same issue appeared there, and there was vigorous 

 7 defense and prevailing in the district court by the 

 8 attorney general's office notwithstanding public 

 9 statements by Attorney General Cooper that he would see 

10 this -- he would have a different view of this law.

11 I think with respect to Magistrate Bumgarner, this 

12 issue of permissive legislative enactment versus -- and 

13 it also applies, I think, to intervenors Myrick and 

14 Holland.  Again, that's trying to create an adversity of 

15 interest where there doesn't really appear to be one.  I 

16 believe Bumgarner, as laid out in her pleadings, had 

17 filed a lawsuit previously in state court and voluntarily 

18 dismissed it.  Myrick and Holland are pursuing -- there 

19 are independent grounds that they are challenging.  There 

20 are predicaments in other matters involving the state as 

21 defense -- as defendants in those cases.  However the 

22 Court adjudicates this matter in this courtroom will 

23 arguably have no impact on their ability to prevail on a 

24 state constitutional grounds or on GERA.  

25 So this is creating matters that particularly with 
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 1 Myrick and Holland that were filed before the enactment 

 2 of Senate Bill II.  It's of no moment, Your Honor, and it 

 3 does not speak to any -- again, if you look at the proof 

 4 of the four corners of what has been filed in this case, 

 5 there is no daylight.  And in fact, they're being more 

 6 than adequately represented by the state attorney 

 7 general's office.

 8 And then just one other matter, Your Honor, with 

 9 respect to want Berger and Moore.  We've raised it.  It's 

10 not been addressed by them in their response.  And 

11 without clouding matters because, again, we think that 

12 what we've seen from the responses filed by the attorney 

13 general's office more than gives this court what it needs 

14 under Stewart and other case law to deny these motions.  

15 There is this issue of legislative immunity that has not 

16 been addressed but we think would be implicated by their 

17 involvement as parties in this lawsuit and how that -- 

18 how that will unfold if they were permitted to be parties 

19 and whether they are waiving any legislative immunity, 

20 and they are open to deposition and that opens all 

21 members of the legislature.  That's not an issue that's 

22 been addressed by them in their pleadings, but we think 

23 it's something that would have to be addressed and 

24 addressed up front by the Court.  

25 So our position, as we fairly lay out, is that 
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 1 under 24(a) they've not made that showing that is 

 2 required under 24(b).  We think that Magistrate Judge 

 3 Howell's analysis -- he sees what's in front of him.  The 

 4 Court's in the best position how to manage this 

 5 litigation.  To be candid, Your Honor, we want to move 

 6 forward as quickly as possible to get an answer so we can 

 7 continue this litigation, but we feel that those rulings 

 8 should remain and that these parties should not be 

 9 permitted to intervene.

10 THE COURT:  Okay.  

11 MR.  SUSSMAN:  Thank you.

12 MR.  POTTER:  Your Honor, may I say just one quick 

13 thing?  

14 THE COURT:  Yes, sir, Mr.  Potter.

15 MR.  POTTER:  The point of whether or not you have 

16 to show inadequacy of representation before intervention, 

17 the United States Guaranty case addressed that.  

18 Particularly, it's cited in Stewart.  And it says the 

19 argument that the bank must have failed to perform its 

20 duty before intervention should be permitted has been 

21 rejected in Turbovich.  The discussion will demonstrate 

22 compliance of the case which will follow.  I understand 

23 that Stewart thought that Turbovich and United States 

24 Guaranty did not apply to the situation in that case but 

25 the principal is still correct.  Otherwise, you could 
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 1 never intervene until the other party, the party in the 

 2 case, did something draconian which prejudiced you.

 3 The second quick point I wanted to make was that 

 4 the idea that the attorney general's interests are the 

 5 same or that -- are the same in the brief is belied by 

 6 the briefs themselves.  We filed a proposed motion to 

 7 dismiss and a long brief.  And not only did we deal with 

 8 the standing issue but we also spend ten pages talking 

 9 about the policy.  The attorney general's interest is to 

10 avoid the policy because he doesn't agree with the law.  

11 So that's another example of how there's an adversity of 

12 interest between the attorney general's office and the 

13 legislature.  Thank you, Your Honor.

14 THE COURT:  All right.  Thank you.

15 Good lawyers for the intervenors, by the way, and 

16 good papers.  What I would say -- what I would say at 

17 this point is what the Court's going to do today.  I've 

18 looked at what Judge Howell wrote, and I'm going to go 

19 ahead and review it de novo.  But it would appear that at 

20 this point that using much the same logic that Judge 

21 Schroeder used in Winston Salem -- and he's an 

22 outstanding judge that could hear anything that I've got.  

23 That's one of the nice things about federal court is that 

24 although we all come to this with different ideas in 

25 terms of where our minds are and our mindset is, we're 
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 1 not politicians and rogues in robes, and we're not 

 2 subject to massive amounts of money for election so that 

 3 we become politicians in robes.  So any federal judge 

 4 around I'll trust with what decision that they do.  

 5 And, again, there's a process involved in this 

 6 district court.  You guys are going to be able to find 

 7 out if it I'm right about this.  I mean we have a process 

 8 here that it goes through.  It starts out with a judge 

 9 like me, at the lowest trial, or the lowest Article III 

10 level, and then it's going to go -- it goes to the 

11 Circuit, and then the Circuit hears it, and you know it's 

12 going to be dependent on how who hears it and what 

13 happens there to a certain extent.  But ultimately the 

14 Supreme Court takes it -- it goes to the Supreme Court.  

15 I'm not telling you guys anything you don't know 

16 but people don't understand there is a process involved.  

17 There aren't, on the federal court, loose cannon judges 

18 at the trial level doing things that can't be stopped. 

19 They can be stopped quick at the Circuit level and they 

20 can be stopped at the Supreme Court level.  So we make 

21 just as many mistakes up here as anybody else does, but 

22 there's a review process that goes up and the cases go up 

23 and the law comes down.  And a good example of that would 

24 be if anybody wants to read on the marriage case, the 

25 Bostic case, which was the first one the Fourth Circuit 
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 1 out of Virginia.  The Fourth Circuit opinion in that, 

 2 there is a strong dissent for states' rights in this.  

 3 And it doesn't talk about any kind of moral or any kind 

 4 of issue.  It's talking about states' rights in this.  

 5 It's a -- it's a recognition that what we're 

 6 talking about in these kinds of cases is -- renders under 

 7 Caesar that Caesar -- this is a court where the 

 8 Constitution of the United States is ultimately there, 

 9 and the laws of the United States if they're not adverse 

10 to the Constitution.  

11 Plaintiff's got a problem.  The problem with this 

12 case is standing I've got to hear where they're going to 

13 go with standing in this case.  But if I rule for or 

14 against them, that's going to go up and there's going to 

15 be a Circuit court that's going to hear that and they're 

16 going to tell me if I'm right or wrong.  And if you get 

17 the Fourth Circuit and the Supreme Court to take it 

18 they'll tell them whether they're right.  Ultimately, 

19 somebody has to make the final decision and we have 

20 selected a Supreme Court to do that, which saves us a 

21 whole lot of trouble.  

22 I mean all you have to do is go back to Bush v 

23 Gore.  If that happened in any other country there would 

24 have been a war over that but not here.  When the Supreme 

25 Court said this is it, there was some complaining to be 
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 1 done on one side and happiness on the other, but we moved 

 2 on because somebody had to make the last call and we've 

 3 selected the courts to do that, the Supreme Court.  And 

 4 we do the preliminary stuff for those guys.  

 5 So stay around because we're going to hear this.  

 6 I'm anticipating that I'm going to be not giving you -- 

 7 not allowing you to intervene and then -- but I don't 

 8 know how that's -- where that's going to go.  

 9 Yes, sir.  

10 MR. SCHMID:  Your Honor, if I may say something.  

11 Your statements there raise one moral concern about our 

12 proposed intervenor Bumgarner has which is, yes, we do 

13 have a system where at the district court level the 

14 decisions are made and they go to circuit court and they 

15 go to the Supreme Court.  However, our clients and every 

16 proposed intervenor would have no such right of recourse.  

17 If our position is to be rejected and the constitutional 

18 rights that are enshrined in the First Amendment and the 

19 Fourteenth Amendment to protect proposed intervenor 

20 Bumgarner and the others are rejected, she'll have no 

21 resource.  She can't go to the circuit court to seek 

22 review.  Amicus won't allow her to do that.  To file an 

23 amicus brief gives her nothing to put forth a position.  

24 But were those positions to be rejected and the attorney 

25 general, who has expressed opposition to the law, doesn't 
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 1 see any need to go forward or doesn't think it's merited 

 2 or that it's too financially costly to do so, proposed 

 3 intervenor Bumgarner and the others will have no recourse 

 4 whatsoever.  They're left in the right without having a 

 5 say-so about whether their rights are adjudicated.

 6 THE COURT:  If the intervenors have constitutional 

 7 rights on their own they have their own constitutional 

 8 rights.  They have claims they can make.  It doesn't just 

 9 have to be in this particular lawsuit.  This is dealing 

10 with a particular law that was passed and whether or not 

11 this is an establishment by saying that if you have 

12 religious -- any kind of well reasoned -- or I can get 

13 the specific -- religious objection to this, then you can 

14 -- I understand what the legislature is doing.  They're 

15 just trying to help these folks.  These folks took these 

16 jobs before the law ever got -- before that was ever 

17 overturned and they weren't expecting to have to do this, 

18 and I understand what the legislature is doing.  

19 It might have been good if you just had any kind 

20 of well held belief.  But, of course, if you've got the 

21 state employee making their own call on everything then 

22 you may have a problem on that.  You may have a problem 

23 getting your stuff done.  But I don't know how the -- if 

24 religious rights are being constitutionally violated then 

25 individuals have a claim to question whether they have a 
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 1 claim in this suit about this law.  This is a specific 

 2 law.  This is the state of North Carolina coming in and 

 3 saying this not coming in against necessarily your 

 4 client.  They're coming in for your client.  The question 

 5 is, is this law unconstitutional?  And I don't even know 

 6 if they have standing.  

 7 I haven't heard -- the Fourth Circuit's had some 

 8 talk about, you know, people just not feeling good about 

 9 something or don't like something.  I haven't heard 

10 anybody that's not been able to get married yet. 

11 Everybody's getting -- I mean -- and nobody's been forced 

12 to marry anybody.  I mean the one that I had was 

13 Christian churches that wanted to perform same sex 

14 marriages.  And now after all those -- after Bostic and 

15 all the cases and my case came down now one Episcopal 

16 church in Asheville doesn't and one Episcopal church in 

17 Asheville does it, and neither one is being forced to do 

18 the other.  And there's still people in the other one 

19 that think they're wrong in doing it.  But everybody is 

20 always wanting to be the boss of everyone else.  It's 

21 that way in politics, it's that way in everything, it's 

22 that way in religion.  But I understand.  

23 And you're -- really and truly, your client has -- 

24 is the most sympathetic in terms of intervening of 

25 everybody here.  The legislature, I think, is being well 
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 1 represented by the -- attorney general lawyers do cases, 

 2 as you guys know.  Sometimes we think we've got the worst 

 3 side of the case and we end up getting a client and we're 

 4 going, golly, I wish I had the other side of the case.  

 5 But we still do a good job and sometimes we win and 

 6 sometimes we lose.  But lawyers do that all the time.  

 7 Lawyers do that all the time.  

 8 And I understand the political situation is a 

 9 very, very volatile one.  And I don't want to get 

10 involved in all the politics of this stuff.  I think it's 

11 bad when judges do that.  I'm always happy to see when it 

12 happens that a judge does something that's not expected.  

13 Justice Roberts, on the ObamaCare thing and not whether 

14 that was the right decision or not, because everybody 

15 expected he was going to lean on the conservative side. 

16 He's a judge.  He's going to make the call the best he's 

17 going to be.  He may be wrong on that.  There are people 

18 who think he was wrong headed in making that decision, 

19 but he made that decision and it was -- he's being a 

20 judge when he makes that decision.  Because sometimes we 

21 just have to put our personal feelings behind us and rule 

22 on the law.  

23 So I may be wrong on this.  And you guys will have 

24 a an opportunity, if you want to to -- if I've been 

25 incorrect in not letting you intervene, but there may be 
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 1 several steps ahead before this case ultimately gets 

 2 decided.  What I'm going to do today is I'm going to hear 

 3 the arguments today from both sides with regard to 

 4 standing and then the claims themselves, and then I'm 

 5 going to make some sort of decision on this case and do 

 6 the best I can in making that.  If it turns out that you- 

 7 all should have been allowed to intervene, we'll have 

 8 another hearing and more arguments.  If we don't, then I 

 9 will rule.  

10 In other words, I'm going to hold back and make 

11 sure I'm right on this.  And I don't get -- I'm sure I'm 

12 right on this now but, you know, sometimes I've been sure 

13 and the Court has told me I'm wrong -- the Fourth 

14 Circuit's told me I'm wrong, and they have no problem 

15 telling me when they think I'm wrong.

16 MR.  SCHMID:  Thank you, Your Honor.

17 THE COURT:  Thank you-all very much.  Thank you.  

18 All right.  Let's jump to the arguments.  You 

19 filed the motion so let me hear what it's about.  

20 MR.  MAJMUNDAR:  Yes, Your Honor.  Thank you.  May 

21 it please the Court.  My name is Amar Majmundar.  I'm 

22 joined by co-counsel Olga Vysotskaya.  It's been 

23 established we're from the attorney's general's office.  

24 I want to be sure -- Your Honor, you had mentioned 

25 standing a couple of times.  Do you care the order in 
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 1 which these motions are presented?  Do you want to hear 

 2 standing first?  

 3 THE COURT:  Yeah.  Let's hear standing first 

 4 because, you know, you get past, it you've got several 

 5 different arguments.  But with regard to standing on 

 6 these things, you know, it's -- it goes all the way 

 7 through all of these claims.  The establishment claim is 

 8 the one which may be able to survive taxpayer or may not 

 9 be able to survive taxpayer claims with regard to that.  

10 The others, this will be a first if it happens.  So go 

11 ahead and argue standing.

12 MR.  MAJMUNDAR:  I appreciate that, Your Honor.

13 THE COURT:  You can argue it all the way through 

14 if you'd like to, but let's go ahead and hear the 

15 standing issue first because that's the door everybody 

16 has to get through before anybody rules on the other 

17 claims.

18 MR.  MAJMUNDAR:  Certainly, Your Honor.  And 

19 Ms. Olga Vysotskaya drew the short straw on that so 

20 she'll present the standing argument.

21 THE COURT:  Very good.  

22 MS.  VYSOTSKAYA:  Your Honor, my name is Olga 

23 Vysotskaya with my colleague Amar Majmundar.  I was 

24 assigned to represent defendant Warren in this case, and 

25 standing issue was my issue so I'll be happy to argue it 
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 1 before Your Honor.  I intend to argue it in the similar 

 2 order the way it was presented in our brief.  

 3 THE COURT:  That's fine.  

 4 MS.  VYSOTSKAYA:  I intend to argue the Flast 

 5 exception, Flast versus Cohen exception, upon which 

 6 plaintiffs expressly rely in this case to establish their 

 7 standing that it does not extend to state taxpayers 

 8 first.  Secondly, I intend to argue that even if this 

 9 type of standing extended to state taxpayers, that 

10 plaintiffs failed to satisfy the two-pronged test that 

11 was announced in Flast in order to meet that kind of 

12 taxpayer standing exception.  And to the degree that Your 

13 Honor would like to hear our argument to the extent that 

14 they don't meet any other type of standing that is common 

15 in federal court cases --

16 THE COURT:  You go ahead.  I've gone through this.  

17 I mean I'm listening to you.  I'm not an empty slate 

18 right now.  Go ahead and argue.

19 MS.  VYSOTSKAYA:  I'll jump right into Flast 

20 versus Cohen case.  The reason being that this is the 

21 type of standing that plaintiff stated specifically in 

22 their complaint that they rely on.  And later when they 

23 responded to our motion to dismiss in their response they 

24 also stated that they relied on Flast for establishment 

25 clause claim and also for their Fourteenth Amendment 
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 1 claim.  

 2 As Your Honor noted, if that type of standing were 

 3 to be granted for the Fourteenth Amendment claim that 

 4 would be the first time that the court has ever done 

 5 this.  Our Supreme Court in Green case, in Cuno case.  In 

 6 every other case that was decided, has clearly extended 

 7 taxpayer standing only to the establishment clause type 

 8 of claims.

 9 THE COURT:  That's the way I see it.

10 MS.  VYSOTSKAYA:  Explicitly, in fact, to expand 

11 that type of standing to the Dormand commerce claim which 

12 was an issue before the court in Cuno case, Daimler 

13 Chrysler versus Cuno case, and several others to 

14 establish clause came, which is a more interesting one.  

15 The general rule still applies.  The Supreme Court 

16 reiterated it several times in Cuno, in Hein, in Wynn 

17 cases.  And the general rule is generally taxpayers don't 

18 have any standing to sue.  However, a very narrow 

19 exception was carved out in Flast versus Cohen case.  In 

20 that case federal taxpayers brought a challenge against a 

21 federal specific appropriates problem which appropriated 

22 money from the federal Treasury to a program that 

23 supported instruction and teaching in religious schools.  

24 Around $1 billion was appropriated under that program, 

25 and taxpayers in that case claimed that that violated the 
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 1 freedom of constitution that it violated the 

 2 establishment clause rights.

 3 THE COURT:  Why is it different for state?  

 4 MS.  VYSOTSKAYA:  It is different in this case for 

 5 several different reasons.  And let me start with the 

 6 test, Your Honor, that was announced in Flast.  In order 

 7 to meet that test, first of all, plaintiffs have to show 

 8 that there is a logical link between the taxpayer's 

 9 status and between the type of legislations that they're 

10 attempting to challenge.  As the Court specifically held, 

11 Flast -- and the Supreme Court in its later decisions 

12 held that it has to be a specific legislative outlet out 

13 lay of money.  In other words, it has to be a specific 

14 taxing and spending program that the government is 

15 establishing in the legislation that is being challenged.  

16 It cannot be just an incidental type of 

17 expenditure that goes basically with every regulatory 

18 statute that legislature ever passes.  There is some kind 

19 of expenditure of money involved.  But the courts held 

20 that unless it's a direct outlay of money in that 

21 specific legislation that Flast then was not applied 

22 under those circumstances.  And this is exactly the 

23 situation that we have presented -- are presented with 

24 here.  

25 Basically what we have in Senate Bill II is a 
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 1 regulatory statute.  It's a statute that basically deals 

 2 with the way -- how the duties of magistrates have been 

 3 for the better -- a portion in the state.  It talks about 

 4 that the magistrates are allowed to recuse themselves 

 5 from performing all the marriages.  And clearly there is 

 6 some kind of expense that is involved with this kind of 

 7 recusal.  In the specific case, a type of expense that is 

 8 involved is the transportation expenses that has to be 

 9 incurred if all the magistrates within the district 

10 recuse themselves and you have to bring a magistrate from 

11 a different jurisdiction to perform the duties of the of 

12 all the magistrates that have recused themselves.  But it 

13 is clearly an incidental type of expense.  It is clearly 

14 not the purpose of that statute on its own.  The purpose 

15 of that statute is to make sure that there is a religious 

16 accommodation that is provided to the magistrates who may 

17 have differing religious views on the nature of marriage.

18 It's different than -- in that way, but also -- 

19 that's one of the issues we raise.  The Flast case has 

20 never been -- has never been expanded -- let me put it in 

21 a different way.  The Supreme Court of the United States 

22 has never held that the Flast case applies to state 

23 taxpayer standing at all.  Flast itself in many places, 

24 as you read the case, talks only about federal 

25 appropriations of money about congressional -- United 
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 1 States' Congress power to do problems within its Article 

 2 I, Section 8 tax and spending powers.  The Supreme Court 

 3 has never held that it applies to the state.

 4 Now there were cases -- and plaintiffs do cite 

 5 some of the cases in their response where the court 

 6 basically assumed that the state taxpayer standing, but 

 7 our justices called such an assumption a nonbinding 

 8 subsilencio.  Nonprecedented, basically.  The court did 

 9 not rely on the assumption of spending in order to make 

10 them an assertion that it constitutes any kind of 

11 presidential authority.

12 Moving on to the second prong.  So we talked about 

13 that this is not a direct legislative outlay.  It's not a 

14 specific taxing and spending program.  It's a regulatory 

15 statute they would have.  That would relate to the first 

16 prong of Flast at the scene.  Plaintiffs fail to 

17 demonstrate that there is a logical link between the 

18 taxpayer status and the type of legislations that they're 

19 challenging.  They also fail to meet the second type, the 

20 second prong of Flast versus Cohen test.  The second 

21 prong is that plaintiffs have to demonstrate that there 

22 is a nexus between the taxpayer's status and the type of 

23 constitutional infringement that they are alleging in 

24 this case.  

25 If you were to go by the assertions made by 
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 1 plaintiffs, basically as soon as you mentioned 

 2 establishment clause that means that you met Flast versus 

 3 Cohen test.  And I would disagree that that's an 

 4 appropriate way to look at that second prong of the test.  

 5 I think the Court has to look at what the legislation 

 6 that is being challenged is actually trying to accomplish 

 7 and see if it actually amounts to the religious type 

 8 infringements in order to meet that second test.  As I 

 9 mentioned before, this is a purely regulatory type of 

10 statute and there is no need for the Court to elevate 

11 form over substance in this case and just take on its 

12 face plaintiff's assertion that this is an establishment 

13 type of violation.

14 I could discuss the case, Your Honor, or I could 

15 just go to talk about why they don't meet the type of 

16 standing that is applicable to every other case other 

17 than the establishment clause case in federal courts.  

18 THE COURT:  Yeah, go ahead.  I'm going to let you 

19 argue what you want to argue today.  Anything you think 

20 might sway me either way, I'll here.

21 MS.  VYSOTSKAYA:  Ordinarily, in order to state 

22 Article III standing, plaintiffs have to show that they 

23 have an injury, that the injury is particularized to them 

24 that is an actual or an imminently threatened type of 

25 injury, that that injury is traceable to the acts of the 
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 1 defendants, and that that injury could be redressed by 

 2 the favorable decision.

 3 THE COURT:  What do you say to the injury they 

 4 claim?  

 5 MS.  VYSOTSKAYA:  I would say the injuries they 

 6 claim is purely hypothetical and conjecture type of 

 7 injury.  They complain sort of about two different types 

 8 of harms that they may experience in the future.  The 

 9 first type of harm that they complain about is that at 

10 some point they may have to appear in court before a 

11 magistrate who does not believe in the type of marriage 

12 that they enter, and that's specifically two sets of 

13 plaintiffs here Your Honor.  The plaintiff same sex 

14 marriage couple that has been married and same sex 

15 marriage couple that is intending to marry but has not 

16 married yet.  

17 So they say that because magistrates have certain 

18 types of beliefs about the nature of their marriage that 

19 they will hold -- that they will apply that type of 

20 belief and show that type of belief towards the group of 

21 people itself rather than the type of marriage.  In other 

22 words, what they say is that the judge will be -- cannot 

23 be impartial.  And I think there is a strong presumption 

24 about this type of claim in this court.  The judges are 

25 presumed to act impartially.  And unless plaintiffs -- 
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 1 and you could have a situation where plaintiffs encounter 

 2 this type of scenario, and I think in that case we 

 3 wouldn't be talking about standing here.  I think we 

 4 wouldn't be raising standing as an issue, but there is no 

 5 specific --

 6 THE COURT:  Your best argument on that that the 

 7 magistrate is going to have a document saying they have 

 8 recused themselves from same sex marriage and the parties 

 9 could file a motion to recuse the judge if the judge 

10 doesn't have the sense to hear the case in the first 

11 place?  Couldn't they do that?  

12 MS.  VYSOTSKAYA:  I think they could, but I think 

13 also it's a big --

14 THE COURT:  It's not like it's being held as a 

15 secret.  If you're not going to perform same sex 

16 marriages, you're going to have to file a document saying 

17 you're not doing it and everybody is going to know who 

18 you are.

19 MS.  VYSOTSKAYA:  Well not everybody is going to 

20 know.  That record is actually a confidential record that 

21 is placed in the magistrate's personnel file.  But that, 

22 again, goes to the fact that this harm is basically 

23 conjectural and hypothetical.  A person appearing before 

24 a magistrate would not even know whether or not that 

25 magistrate has recused himself or herself.  And in case 
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 1 the judge behaves impartially there are other judicial 

 2 recourses, as Your Honor knows.  There are motions to be 

 3 filed to recuse a judge if a judge behaves impartially 

 4 and if plaintiffs in that case would demonstrate that 

 5 this has occurred.

 6 THE COURT:  Judges file refusals all the time.  In 

 7 fact, I ended up with a case -- the original case because 

 8 a judge filed a recusal.  And the case that I had here 

 9 that was before this on the marriage, I didn't have that 

10 case.  The other judge got out of the case and I got 

11 that.  The next one in line is me, so I ended up taking  

12 it.  Now I've gotten this case.  So it happens.  Judges 

13 recuse all the time.  

14 MS.  VYSOTSKAYA:  Or plaintiffs -- if that harm 

15 actually existed, if they appeared before judges they 

16 believed the judge was impartial because he was 

17 discriminating against same sex couples, of course, they 

18 could file the appropriate motion.  But because there is 

19 no factual allegation that states that plaintiffs have 

20 encountered that situation, there is not even an 

21 allegation stating that they are about to appear before a 

22 magistrate on any matter.  This just doesn't meet that 

23 first prong of the regular standing test.  It's not an 

24 actual threatened or even type of injury that is alleged 

25 here.  
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 1 Of course there is a problem also with tracing the 

 2 alleged impartiality of a magistrate to the Senate Bill 

 3 II.  Senate bill II does not create an impartiality.  All 

 4 Senate Bill II does is it allows magistrates who believe 

 5 in marriage differently for religious purposes --

 6 THE COURT:  Don't you think that ought to be known 

 7 though?  Why hide it?  If you're going to be doing -- if 

 8 this is a religious thing, don't you want to stand up on 

 9 the top of the roof and shout out that this is a sin and 

10 I don't believe in it?  Wouldn't you want to do that?  

11 Why are you keeping it a secret from everybody?  What's 

12 the problem with keeping a secret?  

13 MS.  VYSOTSKAYA:  I think the statute makes it 

14 confidential because --

15 THE COURT:  I understand that.  But don't you 

16 think that should be something that's known?  

17 MS.  VYSOTSKAYA:  I think that those magistrates 

18 who recuse themselves are not prohibited from declaring 

19 that to be so.

20 THE COURT:  No.  I'm sure they're not prohibited 

21 from that, but what they're worried about is somebody 

22 who's saying I'm going to get those folks when they come 

23 in here.  I'm going to get those folks when they come in 

24 here.  And the state magistrates don't have the same 

25 legal background and training that lawyers and judges and 
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 1 everybody have to try to talk about being able to handle 

 2 things that you may not agree with.  Some people carry 

 3 their beliefs on their shoulders.

 4 MS.  VYSOTSKAYA:  I think, Your Honor, that first 

 5 of all, there is a very strong legal presumption that 

 6 those people who were appointed -- elected into judicial 

 7 types of roles won't do so.  And if it does happen again, 

 8 and it is not alleged to have happened in this case, 

 9 plaintiffs will have a recourse.  Plaintiff will have a 

10 recourse.  They could file a lawsuit at that time.  They 

11 could file appropriate motions to recuse the judge for 

12 reasons that they believe are true.  You do not have to 

13 have a refusal form or know the name of the magistrate to 

14 see you are being treated impartially or -- 

15 THE COURT:  Well move on.  Move on.  

16 MS.  VYSOTSKAYA:  Plaintiffs cannot demonstrate -- 

17 they cannot meet that second prong of the test either.  

18 They cannot trace the type of harm that they alleged 

19 they're afraid to suffer to the Senate Bill II.  They 

20 could link it potentially to the magistrate's personal 

21 belief but not to Senate Bill II.  Senate Bill II does 

22 not enshrine anything, does not require anybody to 

23 believe in any particular way.  

24 And Your Honor, you probably know that there was a 

25 case recently decided in Mississippi where the state of 
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 1 Mississippi passed legislation, too, that allowed 

 2 religious accommodations to its magistrates.  But that 

 3 case was -- it's Bryant versus -- it's a Bryant case.  In 

 4 that legislation question there was clearly in your case 

 5 I think.  And I think most people would agree was 

 6 enshrining of a specific type of belief.  In that case it 

 7 was specific -- three categories of beliefs that were 

 8 listed in the legislation itself that clearly treated 

 9 same sex couples differently from other couples in the 

10 marriage of --

11 THE COURT:  What if you're an Atheist and you 

12 don't want to do same sex marriages because you don't 

13 have any religious belief but you just don't like them?  

14 Have you got to write down you don't like them, or do you 

15 have to say this is a religious belief?  

16 MS.  VYSOTSKAYA:  Your Honor, I think that's an 

17 excellent question and I think it would allow a 

18 magistrate to use the recusal form.  If you do not 

19 believe that marriage should be sanctioned, let's say, by 

20 the state at all.  If you believe it's a purely religious 

21 thing I think you could file your recusal form.  I think 

22 if you are an Atheist you could file your recusal form as 

23 well.  It's religious objections.  You could object, in 

24 other words, to religion and still take benefit of Senate 

25 Bill II.  I think it would allow you too absolutely.  
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 1 And finally, Your Honor, it is difficult also to 

 2 see that even a favorable decision from this court would 

 3 redress the type of injury plaintiffs are complaining 

 4 about.  What they're asking the Court to do is to enjoin 

 5 the spending under Senate Bill II.  They do not ask the 

 6 Court to declare Senate Bill II in its entirety to be 

 7 unconstitutional because, clearly, establishment clause 

 8 type of claim would not allow them to seek that type of 

 9 framing.  

10 Establishment clause claim only allows to strike 

11 down spending as unconstitutional, not the whole entire 

12 problem as unconstitutional.  So the situation that they 

13 would find themselves in would be that the state won't be 

14 able to spend money on magistrate recusal but magistrate 

15 refusals would be able to continue.  And it doesn't seem 

16 like that third prong of the standing requirement is met 

17 by the type of relief that plaintiffs are demanding in 

18 this case.  There is a mismatch.

19 We also ask Your Honor to have this case dismissed 

20 from prudential considerations.  It's different from 

21 constitutional Article III standing, but this is a case 

22 where plaintiffs are challenging the state regulatory 

23 statute that basically regulates how duties of 

24 magistrates are being assigned.  It's a type of case that 

25 is best decided either within the state courts or decided 
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 1 through a political process through petitioning the 

 2 government, through voting -- voting in elections, trying 

 3 to select representatives who support your type of view.  

 4 It's not a type of case that federal judiciary is usually 

 5 assigned or asked to decide.  So we ask Your Honor to 

 6 consider our prudential argument that is presented in 

 7 full in our brief as well, in addition to -- in addition 

 8 to asking the court to dismiss -- I'm happy to answer any 

 9 standing questions.

10 THE COURT:  Not right now.

11 MS.  VYSOTSKAYA:  If Your Honor is fine with that, 

12 I would like to move on to plaintiff's failure to state a 

13 claim on the establishment clause claim and also on their 

14 equal protection claim.

15 THE COURT:  Briefly.  Go ahead.

16 MS.  VYSOTSKAYA:  Yes, Your Honor, I'll be very 

17 brief.  Basically, Your Honor, the Supreme Court 

18 precedent and our Fourth Circuit precedent, as well, 

19 allows for states or federal government to pass religious 

20 accommodations for its employees.  Civil rights Act --  

21 Title VII of the Civil Rights Act actually requires an 

22 employer to accommodate employee's religious beliefs.  So 

23 there is nothing wrong with the fact that the state 

24 actually passed a law that contains a religious 

25 accommodation clause.  In order -- Your Honor, recent 
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 1 argument there presented by plaintiff of whether or not 

 2 it's a valid type of religious accommodation type of 

 3 statute or not.  

 4 Plaintiffs argue that Lemon test should apply.  

 5 And we submit that you don't have to apply Lemon test.  

 6 You could look at the substance of Senate Bill II and 

 7 conclude from the substance without looking at the Lemon 

 8 test and that it's an appropriate religious 

 9 accommodation, that it does not create any state 

10 sponsored church, that Senate Bill II does not 

11 differentiate between the set of beliefs that the state 

12 prefers, that it's equal and impartial to all sets of 

13 belief.  It's neutral in that respect.  

14 Your Honor could look to the fact that there were 

15 magistrates who would have lost their jobs if Senate Bill 

16 II would not have been passed and conclude that the state 

17 had rational interest in supporting this type -- had 

18 interest -- basically, legitimate interest in supporting 

19 these magistrates.  The Court could look at the fact that 

20 the state is clearly interested in protecting the work 

21 force, the experienced work force, of the state 

22 employees, including magistrates, and could have passed 

23 law for that.  Basically, other than making a lot of 

24 blanket conclusions, plaintiff has not alleged there is 

25 any kind of infringement upon religion or establishment 
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 1 of religion in Senate Bill II.

 2 We also would argue, even if Lemon test is 

 3 applied, that all the requirements of the Lemon versus 

 4 Kurtzman test met by the language of the Senate Bill II.  

 5 And Your Honor, I won't repeat it; I'm sure you're 

 6 familiar with the test.  We laid it out in our briefs.  

 7 We believe that all the arguments I suggested a second 

 8 ago would support also a finding that facially Senate 

 9 Bill II meets all the required prongs -- three prongs of 

10 the Lemon versus Kurtzman test for equal protection and 

11 due process argument, in addition to having problems with 

12 standing, given the fact that they're basing their test 

13 of Flast test.  

14 Plaintiffs have not stated that Senate Bill II -- 

15 could they state that Senate Bill II contains any kind of 

16 classification towards same sex couples, same sex couples 

17 are clearly not referenced.  There is no any kind of 

18 special aim that is being taken at same sex couples in 

19 that field so there is no certification stated.  The 

20 Court does not even have to look at that point whether or 

21 not there is any kind of legitimate interest that the 

22 state has.  There is no classification no need for to 

23 apply any other test.  However, if the Court were to find 

24 there's some kind of assumed or secret classification in 

25 Senate Bill II, we would argue that -- for the reasons I 
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 1 submitted earlier -- that state test legitimate interest 

 2 in passing that legislation.

 3 And for the due process claim there is no 

 4 fundamental right that have been alleged to have been 

 5 infringed by Senate Bill II.  Plaintiff simply can't 

 6 state the claim.  It's based, again, upon the same type 

 7 of hypothetical and conjectural harms that, Your Honor, 

 8 you and I discussed at length before.  

 9 We also ask the Court to dismiss this case based 

10 on plaintiff's filing of the case in the wrong venue.  

11 Your Honor, would you be interested in hearing that 

12 argument?  It's laid out in our briefs.  The case law is 

13 laid out.  Basically, defendant -- clearly in this case, 

14 defendant Warren is a state official who resides in 

15 Raleigh.  The venue is appropriate in the Eastern 

16 District under the first prong of the federal statute of 

17 28, U.S.C., 1391.  The second prong is that the 

18 substantial -- that you could file it in the venue where 

19 the substantial advance that led to the claim have 

20 occurred.  And since nothing was claimed to have occurred 

21 in this case, all is based upon potential harm in the 

22 future.

23 THE COURT:  Right.  I think they talked about 

24 McDowell County.  I think the magistrates down there had 

25 all opted out, at least for a while, and they had to move 
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 1 people in.  But so far I think everybody's been able to 

 2 get married that wants to get married down there, 

 3 regardless of orientation.  

 4 MS.  VYSOTSKAYA:  That's interesting, Your Honor, 

 5 because Rutherford and McDowell County are actually 

 6 within the same judicial district.  So the obligation for 

 7 the Director Warren to be involved by spending money to 

 8 transfer a magistrate from one district to another 

 9 district is actually not triggered by that factual 

10 allegation that plaintiffs make.  It's simply magistrates 

11 were moving in the same judicial district.

12 THE COURT:  Yeah, but they were moved.  They were 

13 specifically being moved in order to make sure that 

14 somebody was at the courthouse in McDowell County to 

15 perform a same sex marriage.  I mean that's where you -- 

16 that whole thing was done to make sure that there was not 

17 -- that a heterosexual couple which was going to be able 

18 to get married on a day when a same sex couple could not 

19 get married to give everyone the equal access there.  I 

20 mean that was why that was done.  I mean, you know, it's 

21 just the reality of the whole thing.  That's why it 

22 wasn't done.  It wasn't, oh, we're just sending 

23 magistrates -- we just like spending money, so we're 

24 going to move magistrates from one place to another.  It 

25 was done to accommodate the magistrates that wished to 
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 1 opt out of performing the marriages.

 2 MS.  VYSOTSKAYA:  It was also done, Your Honor, to 

 3 accommodate the types of interest that plaintiffs are 

 4 advocating for to make sure that, despite the fact that 

 5 all magistrates recused themselves, there is somebody 

 6 available to marry them as well.

 7 THE COURT:  I understand.  I understand.  You're 

 8 right.  

 9 MS.  VYSOTSKAYA:  Your Honor, that kind of wraps 

10 up my argument.  I'm happy to answer any questions or 

11 rebut.

12 THE COURT:  No.  You may have something to say 

13 when they argue.  Do you want to argue first or?  

14 MR.  MAJMUNDAR:  At Your Honor's discretion.  If 

15 you want to keep this issue fresh in your mind while 

16 listening to their arguments, I'm glad to defer.  It's 

17 just one more argument on behalf of defendant.

18 THE COURT:  Let me go ahead and hear you and then 

19 I'll let them go, and I'll let you respond.

20 MR.  MAJMUNDAR:  I'll try to be as pithy as 

21 possible.  As Your Honor knows, because of some Eleventh 

22 Amendment immediate concerns, Judge Warren was named in 

23 the second iteration of this lawsuit under Ex Parte 

24 Young.  And as the Court is aware under Ex Parte Young, 

25 the name of the official cannot be someone who has the 



 43

 1 authority to enforce state's laws.  It has to be someone 

 2 that has to be someone who has a special relationship to 

 3 the challenged action.  That official has to be clothed 

 4 in the enforcement duty of that challenged action.  There 

 5 has to be proximity to or responsibility for the 

 6 enforcement of the challenged action.

 7 And so in that regard -- and kind of move along 

 8 quickly.  But in that regard, the defendant here is 

 9 appointed by the Chief Justice of the North Carolina 

10 Supreme Court.  The AOC is established by virtue of the 

11 North Carolina Constitution as well as by statute.  

12 Statutes specifically delineate what the director of the 

13 AOC can and essentially cannot do.  It provides an 

14 exhaustive list, and it's found at N.C.G.S. 7A-746.  And 

15 it's a long litany of the responsibilities of the 

16 Director of the AOC.  

17 Included in that list is entering into defendant 

18 contracts and securing IDs for employees, and making sure 

19 there's a legion of translators who are certified and 

20 qualified to perform their services.  a variety, as the 

21 name would apply, administrative functions that are 

22 designed to facilitate not only litigants' experiences in 

23 North Carolina courts but those of the judges as well.  

24 And it should be clear that AOC is not synonymous with 

25 the judicial department.  Rather, it's a cog within the 
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 1 umbrella of the judicial department.  It's a small 

 2 section of the judicial department, and they do a lot of 

 3 the administrative mechanical facilitating work.  

 4 And so in that regard they act more as file 

 5 keepers and bookkeepers and, you know, ordering copy 

 6 paper when it needs to be ordered.  They do all the 

 7 little things to insure that the judicial system in North 

 8 Carolina runs as efficiently as possible and hopefully 

 9 yield better jurisprudence as a consequence.  So when you 

10 look at that list of duties as assigned to Judge Warren 

11 and his predecessor and his eventual successor, it's 

12 pretty clear that it's purely administrative, and it's 

13 especially true with respect to magistrates.

14 THE COURT:  Well who should be sued then?  I mean 

15 who are we going to have sued in a case like that?  I 

16 mean is it hidden?  Is it sort of a game maybe you'll get 

17 it picked right, kind of like Battleship where if you hit 

18 them you've got to hit?  

19 MR.  MAJMUNDAR:  Right.  I don't suggest any sort 

20 of legal whack-a-mole here.  What I'm trying to do is 

21 delineate what he's responsible to.  I will point that 

22 7A-146 provides that the chief district judge, subject to 

23 the general supervision of the chief justice of the 

24 supreme court has administration supervision and 

25 authority over the operation of the magistrates in his 
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 1 district.  So the chief district court judge is the one 

 2 who actually hires and fires and reviews performance if 

 3 there is a grievance asserted.

 4 THE COURT:  Do you have to sue them all, since 

 5 this is an effort to affect the law statewide?  Have you 

 6 got to sue every single one of them out there because 

 7 they might have someone out there helping out in their 

 8 district?  

 9 MR.  MAJMUNDAR:  I think every potential 

10 litigation has to be factored in, I think, given the case 

11 in this county or that district.  The other option as 

12 well -- I'm not advocating this happened, but magistrates 

13 themselves who refuse to abide by your court's -- by your 

14 order of General Synod would also be a likely defendant 

15 if their refusal is SB II-related.  So, irrespective of 

16 who may be the appropriate person, it's pretty clear that 

17 defendant is not the appropriate person because, again, 

18 he has to have that special relationship with respect to 

19 enforcement.  And if you review this obligation it's 

20 purely administrative.

21 Now plaintiffs have -- and you've pointed out the 

22 issue here is really the establishment clause portion of 

23 this lawsuit that there is money spent.  And according to 

24 plaintiffs, Director Warren is the one who spends that 

25 money.  And in that sense it's true they're the 
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 1 bookkeepers for the judicial department and they cut the 

 2 checks for the translators and the other vendors and for 

 3 salaries and for whatever might be travel expenses.  

 4 But there's a couple of points to be made is that 

 5 within a district, a judicial district, expenses are 

 6 always incurred.  If a magistrate calls in sick in one 

 7 county, there's a need for extra magistrates.  If there's 

 8 an emergency of some sort, whatever it is, there's 

 9 routine movement of magistrates between counties in a 

10 district.

11 THE COURT:  Right.  But this is being done -- I 

12 mean, realistically, this is a specific thing that's 

13 being done that ultimately authorizes the expenditure to 

14 allow these magistrates who want to opt out of performing 

15 any marriage because of their opposition to performing 

16 same sex marriages to be able to be moved around to make 

17 sure there's always cover.  And apparently they've done 

18 pretty good because I haven't heard any -- nobody's filed 

19 a lawsuit that on the day they wanted to get married the 

20 county was loaded with opposition.  

21 MR.  MAJMUNDAR:  That's exactly the point, Your 

22 Honor.  I know plaintiffs have suggested to the Court 

23 that SB II and Director Warren have acted in defiance of 

24 General Synod.  But the reality is is whether you 

25 disagree with SB II or you disagree or you're neutral, 
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 1 the objective viewpoint of SB II is that it does in fact 

 2 insure that any person who goes to a magistrate with the 

 3 person they love can get married.  That they're not going 

 4 to be turned away at the door because they might be a 

 5 same sex couple or an interracial couple or a 

 6 heterosexual couple.  SB II, whatever you might think of 

 7 the motivation behind it one way or another, it does in 

 8 fact insure that General Synod is complied with if nobody 

 9 encounters that circumstance where they want to get 

10 married but cannot.  

11 And the other aspect of moving these magistrates 

12 around is that it's at the request of the chief district 

13 court judge.  In whatever district it might be, if all 

14 the magistrates stand up and say we're not going to do 

15 this for whatever deeply held -- religious held 

16 convictions they have, we don't feel comfortable doing 

17 this.  And in the event all the magistrates in that 

18 district decide we're not going to do this, then and only 

19 then can the chief district court judge ask the AOC to 

20 bring in a magistrate from another district.  And if you 

21 look at SB II, the only provision in that law that 

22 relates or even refers to AOC is that limited 

23 circumstance where all the magistrates stand up and say 

24 we're not going to do this in this district.  And then 

25 and only then can AOC make arrangements and move people 
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 1 around to insure that this court's order in General Synod 

 2 is complied with.  

 3 So there is this kind of de minimus expenditure of 

 4 funds for the purpose of moving magistrates around not 

 5 just for marriage purposes but for a variety of different 

 6 purposes within a district.  And only in a limited 

 7 circumstance when all the magistrates stand up and say 

 8 we're not going to do it can AOC move from another 

 9 district a magistrate.  That's the first part of spending 

10 issue.  

11 The second part is interesting, Your Honor, in 

12 that complains that the state has filled in the 

13 retirement funds for these magistrates who resigned.  So 

14 after your order in General Synod there were a number of 

15 magistrates who said, you know what?  I'm not comfortable 

16 doing this sort of marriage.  They have their own 

17 personal beliefs whether you agree or disagree with them.  

18 They resigned.  Senate Bill II came out around eight 

19 months after this court's order in General Synod.  And 

20 what Senate Bill II says is, all you magistrates who 

21 resigned we understand you have personal beliefs; 

22 everybody has their personal belief.  If you want to come 

23 back as a magistrate, you may do so.  You will not get 

24 your salary back, you will not get your sick time back, 

25 you will not get your vacation time accrued.  However, if 
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 1 you want to come back, you have 90 days from the 

 2 enactment of this bill to submit your application.  And 

 3 in doing so, if you are approved, then the state will 

 4 make up the difference in the date of service between the 

 5 time you resigned some time after October 9th of 2014 and 

 6 from the enactment of Senate Bill II.  

 7 There's two points about this, Your Honor, is that 

 8 expenditure is done.  It's been done for many months now.  

 9 These folks had 90 days to submit their papers to be 

10 reinstated and have money put into the retirement account 

11 to make up that gap of service.  There's no more 

12 expenditure in that regard, and this is prospective 

13 injunctive relief on their claims on that issue.  The 

14 money is spent.  It's done.  It won't be spent again.  

15 Secondly, it's hard to square the circle that 

16 filling in the retirement gaps are those who really felt 

17 compelled to resign.  Is it advanced of a religious 

18 purpose?  And that's what the establishment clause 

19 violation suggests is it's an advancement of a religious 

20 purpose, rather than insuring that people who work a 

21 number of years in state employment had the chance and 

22 had their retirement where, when they finally do retire 

23 uninterrupted by a gap because it's something they felt 

24 strongly about.  

25 And you said Your Honor at the very beginning that 
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 1 you know people -- reasonable people have different 

 2 opinions on same sex marriage and it's okay to have those 

 3 opinions we have to avoid by the law and that's a hundred 

 4 percent true.  So if these folks come back and say, you 

 5 know, as the law is with Senate Bill II, I'm absolutely 

 6 going to abide by it.  They shouldn't be punished by 

 7 their ability to retire in a timely fashion or a receive 

 8 the full benefits as a state retiree would have.  On the 

 9 expenditure issue.  I think that's now been rendered moot 

10 by virtue of the lapse of time, if nothing else.

11 So plaintiffs in their complaint have made a 

12 number of general legal conclusions and they're couched 

13 as facts, but they're legal conclusions -- and I think 

14 what plaintiffs do is forget the actual language of 

15 Senate Bill II.  As I described, there's only a very 

16 limited context in which the AOC and the director may be 

17 involved in the processes associated with Senate Bill II 

18 and that's when all the magistrates stand up in a 

19 district and say we're not going to do this.  From that 

20 language, plaintiff suggested the defendant is willing 

21 administrator of that systemic religious based disavowal 

22 of the oath to uphold the federal constitution.  And I'm 

23 not sure exactly how making sure magistrates are 

24 available to perform marriages constitutes a willing 

25 religious based disavow of the oath of the federal 
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 1 constitution.  They're making sure people can get 

 2 married, they're making sure people aren't denied the 

 3 right to get married.  So to suggest that in doing that 

 4 they're enforcing this disavow of the constitution, it's 

 5 different for me to square that sir.

 6 Now I guess in the absence of specific facts 

 7 because, as Ms. Olga talked about, there aren't a lot of 

 8 facts to suggest there's been a harm that's been 

 9 incurred.  A lot of these things are ephemeral and 

10 they're speculative.  So in the absence of those facts 

11 plaintiffs have pointed out three cases to Your Honor 

12 that they believe establish that Director Warren, Judge 

13 Warren, is a proper party.  Those three cases actually 

14 stand for the opposite.  I'm not going to go through them 

15 in any great detail.  They're the South Carolina Wildlife 

16 Federation and Lighthouse case.  

17 In that case the court went through great detail 

18 to determine the South Carolina DOT was not only 

19 supervising the DOT and having this road built in an 

20 environmentally sensitive area, but he also was deeply 

21 involved in getting that work done and getting it 

22 advanced and getting that permit.  And according to that 

23 level of involvement, he was enforcing the laws at issue 

24 in that case.  That's not the case here.

25 The second case --
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 1 THE COURT:  Let me -- but let me ask you one more 

 2 time about this.  Let's just assume for a minute that 

 3 there is -- standing to attack the law there's taxpayer 

 4 standing to attack the law, the law as it is before it 

 5 goes out, before it's spent.  Who gets sued?  Who is the 

 6 proper party to be sued here?  If you're good at figuring 

 7 out who's not supposed to be sued, North Carolina surely 

 8 knows who is supposed to be sued in this.  Who do you say 

 9 is supposed to be sued so the Court can look at it and go 

10 you're right or you're wrong?  

11 MR.  MAJMUNDAR:  I appreciate the Court's 

12 question.  It's a knotty one.  The answer, I think, is 

13 always going to be factor.

14 THE COURT:  That's not good enough for me.  I 

15 understand what you're saying.  You want the judge in 

16 McDowell County to be sued if it happens there.  You want 

17 to wait until a marriage is denied in Mecklenburg and 

18 have that judge sued.  Let's suppose if as it is borne -- 

19 as the statute comes out it is facially unconstitutional 

20 under the establishment clause.  Who is supposed to be 

21 sued under that when it's borne there at the legislature?  

22 Does everybody have to wait and individually attack it so 

23 that the law just sits there causing issues along the 

24 way?  Who's the right person to sue?  This is all going 

25 to get -- it's going to -- no matter what I do this is 
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 1 all going to get salted out -- every one of these issues 

 2 is going to get cleared up by somebody.

 3 MR.  MAJMUNDAR:  Sure.  And I don't think that it 

 4 would have to be an individual case by case basis.  I 

 5 think if there is a case and there's a declaratory 

 6 judgment, one sought, in that case that declaratory 

 7 judgment ruling will encompass any case that invokes the 

 8 same legal issues.

 9 THE COURT:  Who would it be against?  

10 MR.  MAJMUNDAR:  If you're asking me, I think the 

11 most likely candidate might be a magistrate.  

12 THE COURT:  You're saying something has to happen 

13 -- you're going to continue to argue that something has 

14 to happen before anybody can do that.  You sort of have 

15 to sit there and wait until the law actually goes forth, 

16 rather than being able to sue when it comes out of the 

17 legislature.  You say wait a minute.  This is an 

18 establishment of religion.  

19 MR.  MAJMUNDAR:  I believe that's true, Your 

20 Honor.  I think somebody something actually does have to 

21 happen.  Ms.  Olga talked about that.  In order for this 

22 to be a purposeful endeavor, this litigation, we have to 

23 talk about something that actually happened.

24 THE COURT:  So I guess when the Church of England 

25 was discriminating against the Puritans, they had to be 
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 1 forced and had to leave in order to do that.  And when 

 2 the Puritans got here and said well we're glad we can 

 3 practice freely our religion, but if you don't do exactly 

 4 what we want you can go out in the woods and die in 

 5 America.  So there's always going to be something that 

 6 comes down the line.  But don't you know at some point 

 7 that something is facially wrong if it is facially wrong?  

 8 I mean if something is facially wrong when it comes out 

 9 of the legislature, who do you sue?  The legislature?  

10 The government?  The administrator?  Who are we going to 

11 sue.

12 MR.  MAJMUNDAR:  Well there are a number of 

13 available defendants in the state of North Carolina, Your 

14 Honor, but -- 

15 THE COURT:  Okay.  Let's move on.  Move on to 

16 something else.

17 MR.  MAJMUNDAR:  I will move on.  Very quickly, 

18 with respect to Bostic, I'd like to distinguish that 

19 quickly.  Plaintiffs have cited Bostic as another example 

20 of where it was determined that the officer named had 

21 enforcement authority.  In Bostic it was the head of the 

22 Office of Registrar there.  In that case the defendant 

23 conceded that she was responsible for the enforcement of 

24 the challenged statute.  That does not exist here.  And 

25 in the McRooney - Cuccinelli, case the court went the 
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 1 other way and said, you know, look.  General enforcement 

 2 authority of the laws of the state of North Carolina -- 

 3 or, I'm sorry, in that case Virginia -- are not 

 4 sufficient.  You have to have more.  You have to have a 

 5 special relationship and even the issuance of advisory 

 6 opinions.  

 7 So the attorney general there issued advisory 

 8 opinions.  Even the issuing of an advisory opinion as to 

 9 what the law means and how it takes effect and what the 

10 ramifications are is in sufficient.  It's not just about 

11 talking about the law or dealing with it tangentially.  

12 You have to be in the game.  Tag, you're it.  You're the 

13 one who's enforcing it.  And if you can't fairly point at 

14 someone and say you've actually enforced the provisions 

15 of this law that infringe upon the constitutionally 

16 enforced rights of a claimant then you're not a proper 

17 party and it's essentially camouflaging a state by naming 

18 an official.

19 THE COURT:  All right.  Let me hear from the 

20 plaintiff.

21 MR.  LARGESS:  Your Honor, could I ask just -- 

22 we're going to be here for a little bit.  Could we take a 

23 short recess before we do that?  

24 THE COURT:  I'm only going to give you 15 minutes.

25 (Laughter.)
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 1 THE COURT:  Yeah, we can take a recess.  Let's go 

 2 ahead and take a recess of about ten minutes.  All right.

 3 (Off the record at 10:45 a.m.)

 4 (On the record at 11:00 a.m.)

 5 THE COURT:  All right.  I'll hear from the 

 6 plaintiffs.

 7 MR.  LARGESS:  Thank you, Your Honor.  Let me 

 8 start -- let me focus on the standing question first but 

 9 start with this.  No one has mentioned yet -- and this 

10 side of the room doesn't really mention it in any of 

11 their pleadings -- what is at issue here, Your Honor.  

12 And that is before there was a Bill of Rights, before 

13 there was a First Amendment, there was an Article VI of 

14 the Constitution that said this constitution is the 

15 supreme law of the land and that every judge in every 

16 state will swear to be bound to uphold it.  And what this 

17 statute does is say that there's a religious exemption 

18 from that requirement.  And we have challenged that law 

19 official facially and as applied as unconstitutional.  

20 THE COURT:  What is your standing for doing that?  

21 In other words, let's suppose for a minute that the Court 

22 agrees with you that you get past the motion to dismiss 

23 if you have standing.  I mean there are -- you know, we 

24 do have rules.  We do have ways that these things get 

25 there to avoid everything being done in a willy-nilly 
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 1 manner.  And there's a serious, serious issue of standing 

 2 in this case that needs to be heard regardless of whether 

 3 that was done.  

 4 What you're saying -- are you saying that these 

 5 are people trying to do a good thing that were misguided 

 6 in what they did?  Or do you think this whole thing is a 

 7 bad thing?  Because the Court sees it as trying to let 

 8 these folks keep their jobs.  And I understand you think 

 9 they ought to be -- you're saying they ought to do the 

10 whole job if they're going to be magistrates.

11 MR.  LARGESS:  They're judges.  Under North 

12 Carolina law they swear a judicial oath.

13 THE COURT:  They do.  They do.  They do swear to 

14 support the federal constitution, yes, they do.  Where in 

15 there -- let me ask the question.  Where in the law is it 

16 about the fact that their recusing is secret?  I've read 

17 through a copy of the statute that I've got.  Is that 

18 something that's done separately to protect them from 

19 protestors or something?  

20 MR.  LARGESS:  I believe so, Your Honor.  I 

21 believe so.  That's -- I'm here to talk about the 

22 establishment clause standing issue, and Ms.  Burke is 

23 going to talk about the Fourteenth Amendment, but they go 

24 together in this way.  In Flast there was this language 

25 about how there may be other constitutional limits on 
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 1 legislative action and those -- and I'm going to take you 

 2 through the history here.  But what's at stake here is 

 3 the integrity of the magistrate's judicial system in 

 4 North Carolina because it's a secret that these people 

 5 who disavow and reject the Fourteenth Amendment ruling of 

 6 this court and the Supreme Court are going to sit and 

 7 hear cases of gay and lesbian persons without knowledge 

 8 of their position that they do not believe they're 

 9 entitled to full citizenship.  That's a fundamental 

10 problem, Your Honor, that we think we have a standing to 

11 raise under Flast.  

12 Let me take you through the history.

13 THE COURT:  Take me through the history, but I 

14 want you to get on to this standing issue.  That's very, 

15 very important to the Court because this is what opens 

16 the doors to the courthouse.

17 MR.  LARGESS:  And this case, Your Honor, is the 

18 narrow case that actually fits within Flast, and here is 

19 why.  If you understand, there's these cases from the 

20 '20s, Frothingham and Melon, saying that federal 

21 taxpayers did not have standing to challenge legislation 

22 as taxpayers.  Then in 1947, Your Honor, remember Everson 

23 versus -- the name of it is Board of Education of the 

24 Ewing New Jersey Township.  A challenge to using school 

25 money to put students on buses to parochial schools was 
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 1 accepted by the Supreme Court because it was state 

 2 taxpayers, municipal taxpayers, challenging on First 

 3 Amendment grounds that spending.  

 4 The court found a secular purpose in the 

 5 transportation scheme and denied on the merits.  About 

 6 ten years later there's this Doremus case where they try 

 7 to challenge, on First Amendment grounds, this practice 

 8 again in the state of New Jersey of having teachers read 

 9 five verses from the Old Testament every day at the start 

10 of school or from the Bible.  That's where this language 

11 about incidental spending came from.  The court said they 

12 couldn't even point to any money that was spent on this 

13 in any budget so therefore there was no claim.  

14 And then that led to Flast in 1968 where you had 

15 this federal education spending bill that went to 

16 parochial and sectarian schools in part, and this group 

17 of taxpayers challenged that.  And the Court held that 

18 Doremus was not -- I mean -- sorry.  That Frothingham and 

19 Melon were not bars to this lawsuit, that if someone 

20 could show that there was a legislative enactment under 

21 the spending clause that had a religious purpose that 

22 that would give them standing under the First Amendment.

23 THE COURT:  How's this case different than Moss 

24 versus Spartanburg?  

25 MR.  LARGESS:  Moss versus Spartanburg?  
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 1 THE COURT:  Yeah.

 2 MR.  LARGESS:  I'm not familiar with that one.  

 3 Can I take you through and -- 

 4 THE COURT:  Go ahead.

 5 MR.  LARGESS:  Let me --

 6 THE COURT:  That was a case where Spartanburg, 

 7 South Carolina, Spartanburg County School District Seven 

 8 adopted a policy allowing public school students to 

 9 receive two academic credits for off-campus religious 

10 instruction.

11 MR.  LARGESS:  Right.  And there was a standing 

12 issue in that case.

13 THE COURT:  There was a standing issue in that 

14 case.  There was -- one child had standing and one was 

15 found not to have standing because they didn't like the 

16 law.  They thought the law was wrong and they were not 

17 found to have standing.  One that was directly impacted 

18 by it did have standing in that case, and that's why I'm 

19 asking how this case might differ from that.  Because, in 

20 other words, essentially what it seems is there's not 

21 been a specific wrong that you can point to other than 

22 that this is generally wrong for them to do this.  

23 MR.  LARGESS:  No, Your Honor, there is wrong.  

24 There's spending privileges purpose.  That's what Flast 

25 prohibits.
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 1 THE COURT:  That's what happened in Spartanburg.

 2 MR.  LARGESS:  I would guess on that case two 

 3 things.  That's probably a Doremus case because it's 

 4 municipal spending.  That school district issue was at 

 5 issue not the state's.  So under Doremus if you can show 

 6 the pocketbook amount, you have standing.  And there -- 

 7 I'll look at a case, a Ninth Circuit case, Cammack -- C A 

 8 M M A C K versus Waihee -- W A I H E E -- a Hawaiian.  He 

 9 was the Hawaiian governor at the time, 922, F 2d, 765.  

10 They showed some actual spending in that case for 

11 religious purpose in the schools.  And under Doremus 

12 there was standing because you could point to the 

13 pocketbook amount.  Even if it was small, you could point 

14 to it.  

15 So without reading Moss -- but let me take you 

16 through -- I think you need to understand the history 

17 after Flast.  And maybe you do understand this, but I 

18 think it's helpful.  There are these series of cases in 

19 the '70s trying to look at this issue of Flast as to 

20 whether you could bring some other kind of challenge 

21 besides an establishment clause challenge.  You may 

22 remember some of these.  You had Slessinger versus The 

23 Reservist Committee to stop the war, which is where the 

24 President allowed members of Congress to join the 

25 Reserves, and there was a challenge that that violated 
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 1 the Constitution because they were holding two offices at 

 2 once.  The court said that's not an -- that is not a 

 3 spending issue under Article I, Section VIII.

 4 There was a similar challenge to the -- in this 

 5 United States versus Richardson, the same day, decided 

 6 about forcing the CIA to reveal its budget and make it 

 7 public.  And it was not under Article I, Section VII so 

 8 it was not an issue under Flast.

 9 Then in 1982 you have this Valley Forge Christian 

10 Church -- Christian College, rather, where H.E.W. gave 

11 land to the school in Pennsylvania, and people had in 

12 Maryland and other states objected and said there was a 

13 violation of the establishment cause for the government 

14 to make a gift to a religious institution.  No standing 

15 -- and this is where you start to get the narrowing.  No 

16 standing because this was spending by the executive.  

17 This was a decision by H.E.W.  There was nothing that 

18 Congress had done and no enactment by Congress that 

19 resulted in this decision.  So there was no standing to 

20 challenge under Flast.

21 That then led -- the next case under flast is a 

22 straightforward one, Boeing v Kendrick, a 1988 case where 

23 there was standing to bring a challenge to something 

24 called the Adolescent Family Life Act because it was 

25 Article I, Section VIII spending and it had a religious 
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 1 -- a potentially religious purpose.  The Court ruled on 

 2 the merits that it was not a violation of the 

 3 establishment clause.

 4 Then you get into the three cases that really 

 5 shape why we have standing today, Your Honor.  The first 

 6 is this Daimler Chrysler Corp. versus Cuno in 2006.  

 7 Toledo and the state of Ohio had given tax incentives to 

 8 Chrysler to try to keep the plant in Toledo, and 

 9 salespeople challenged those tax credits.  Interestingly, 

10 if you read the case, Judge, that case was removed from 

11 state court and the plaintiff sought a remand because 

12 they didn't think they had standing in federal court.  

13 And then ultimately when the case went to the Supreme 

14 Court they had to make a standing argument. They tried to 

15 make one under the commerce clause, and the court said 

16 those aren't the same considerations.  The issue under 

17 Flast, Your Honor, was this Madisonian concern going back 

18 to the founding of the country that you cannot spend any 

19 amount of money as a legislature, not three pence.

20 THE COURT:  Where in the statute itself does it 

21 talk about the money being spent?  I mean in paragraph 

22 three it says if and only all magistrates in a 

23 jurisdiction are recused, the chief district court judge 

24 shall notify the Administrative Office of the Court.  The 

25 Administrative Office of the Court shall insure a 
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 1 magistrate's available in that jurisdiction for 

 2 performance of marriages required under G.S. 7A-(b). It 

 3 doesn't presuppose that people are going to be paid 

 4 travel or anything like -- obviously, that's something 

 5 that you would like to be able to do to keep people from 

 6 having to do that, but it says they've got to insure 

 7 somebody is there.  Where is the expenditure by the 

 8 legislature?  Where's the money authorized there?  

 9 MR.  LARGESS:  There's an authorization here and 

10 with the retirement spending to do what is necessary to 

11 expend funds, if necessary, to move.  It's a logical part 

12 of that.  And you said here it's logical.  What happened 

13 if they're going to move them from one county to another?  

14 They're going to pay them to do that.

15 THE COURT:  Answer one question.  Where is the 

16 secret part in here?  I want to read that.

17 MR.  LARGESS:  Hang on.

18 THE COURT:  Where did they decide?  Because I know 

19 when I recuse, everybody -- it's filed.  I mean there's a 

20 list of cases of people that I can't hear cases for.  

21 When all the other judges of this district are recused, 

22 we're recused.  I want to know what the secret -- 

23 MR.  SUSSMAN:  Your Honor, I believe the statute 

24 itself lays it out but I would, for the record, note that 

25 the AOC has issued a form, as it does in many state 
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 1 matters, AOC-A-246.  And this is called the Magistrate 

 2 Recusal From The Solemnization Of Marriages Form.

 3 THE COURT:  All right.

 4 MR.  SUSSMAN:  On that form it notes in bold:  

 5 Note to chief district court judge.  This form is a 

 6 confidential personnel record under Chapter 126 of the 

 7 General Statutes of North Carolina.  And there's some 

 8 additional records there about how the magistrate should 

 9 save a copy for his or her own personnel files.

10 THE COURT:  Yeah.  I've read the statute itself, 

11 and I did not see it in there specifically saying that 

12 they had to be confidential.

13 MR.  SUSSMAN:  Your Honor, just because -- I'm 

14 referencing this form so it makes clear in bold that this 

15 is confidential.  I would also make just -- the Court had 

16 asked this previously when the attorney general's office 

17 was arguing.  The only way to except out is pursuant to 

18 a, quote, "sincerely held religious objection," end 

19 quote.

20 THE COURT:  That could be -- I mean Atheists -- I 

21 could say I don't believe in any religion, therefore 

22 that's religious.  The Wiccans might say we believe in 

23 natural law and we're going to except out or something.  

24 I mean there's all sorts of things that could be on 

25 there.  It doesn't specifically say a religion itself, 
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 1 but you're saying that the -- it's establishing this 

 2 against the Atheists, is that it, or the Agnostics?  

 3 MR.  SUSSMAN:  No.  Simply to the point that in 

 4 order to opt out under the current form you must sign and 

 5 attest.

 6 THE COURT:  That you have a sincere religious 

 7 belief.

 8 MR.  SUSSMAN:  Sincerely held religious belief.

 9 THE COURT:  Right.  Which might be I don't have 

10 any religion so I don't believe in it, or I don't have 

11 any -- I may be a Wiccan and I believe in the birds and 

12 the trees and things like that, and it's just not my 

13 thing.  I mean, couldn't you do that?  Really and truly 

14 you could say that you're out?  

15 MR.  SUSSMAN:  I don't believe you could, Your 

16 Honor.  I think that --

17 THE COURT:  All right.  Go ahead.  

18 MR.  SUSSMAN:  We can address that later.  

19 THE COURT:  I mean, is this done -- let me ask 

20 this question.  Is this done just to try to get these 

21 folks out of there?  Just to remove people?  In other 

22 words, there was all this stuff against same sex 

23 marriage.  Some of it was those that were fighting for 

24 that felt it was mean-spirited.  Is this, sort of, let's 

25 get these folks out of there?  Because everybody that's 
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 1 wanted to get married has gotten married.  Nobody has 

 2 been denied a marriage under my order since that order 

 3 came forward.  And is this not just an effort to try to 

 4 have a win-win by the state?  

 5 MR.  LARGESS:  Your Honor, I don't know --

 6 THE COURT:  It may be misguided.  It may be 

 7 misguided.  Maybe if you're right on -- if you're right 

 8 on your standing and right on your claim.  But isn't that 

 9 really what it is?  Or are they just trying to secret 

10 people in the courthouse that are going to find cases 

11 against same sex couples?  

12 MR.  LARGESS:  Let me say this, Your Honor.  

13 That's an issue to be developed in discovery in the case.  

14 The motive behind the law -- it's our view it was filled 

15 with animus towards the decision of this court and the 

16 rights of these people to allow people on their religious 

17 grounds to disavow the constitution.

18 THE COURT:  I understand that there are those that 

19 are opposed, for whatever reason, to same sex marriage, 

20 but that doesn't mean that they can't do something that 

21 is not a bad thing.  I mean just because you think 

22 somebody may be bad toward your folks doesn't mean that 

23 every action that they do is -- that is a bad act in 

24 trying to do that.  You know, then are they not just 

25 saying -- 
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 1 MR.  LARGESS:  Your Honor, again, I think that 

 2 goes to the merit of the case and the motive issue.

 3 THE COURT:  It does.  But I am going to ask these 

 4 questions because you immediately wanted to go to the 

 5 fact that -- rather than get into the standing issue you 

 6 wanted to go immediately to the issue of the 

 7 Constitution, the six articles of the Constitution, 

 8 before all that came in.  And so when we start going into 

 9 everything and get into the constitution itself and get 

10 away from the standing issue, I think that if you can get 

11 past the standing issue you might get past dismissal.  

12 But the problem is getting past the standing issue.

13 MR.  LARGESS:  Let me continue then, Your Honor.  

14 So in 2006 you had this Daimler Chrysler case saying, 

15 again, a challenge under the -- an attempted claim 

16 standing under the commerce clause and the court saying 

17 there's no comparison to the commerce clause and First 

18 Amendment in terms of the interests that are at stake.  

19 And it goes through that language about the interest at 

20 stake is the right of conscience of every person not to 

21 have to give their tax money to any religious purpose 

22 that they may disagree with.  

23 So then in 2007 you had this case that's 

24 challenged -- you remember President George W. Bush had 

25 this faith-based initiatives program where he tried to 
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 1 engage the churches in social service network stuff, and 

 2 there was a legal challenge to using the money as a First 

 3 Amendment violation, and that went up to the Court in 

 4 2007.  And that's where you got this distinction again 

 5 this is Hein -- H I E N -- this distinction.  Again, this 

 6 was executive spending.  There was nothing in the record 

 7 showing that Congress gave the money to the President 

 8 specifically directing him to engage with religious 

 9 groups, and that's what was required for the Flast 

10 standing, some legislative enactment that had something 

11 to do with religion.  And that was missing here.  It was 

12 just a blank check, essentially, to the administration to 

13 do that, to do what it wished, and it decided to do this 

14 program.  So it wasn't Flast standing to challenge it.  

15 Then you come to 2011 and Arizona has adopted this 

16 voucher program, or tuition credit tax credit program, 

17 not a voucher program, called STOs where people could 

18 donate up to, I think, $500 a year towards these tuition 

19 programs for students to go to private and religious 

20 schools.  And that was challenged as under the 

21 establishment clause.  And there's this 5-4 split in the 

22 court over whether there was Flast standing to challenge 

23 that legislation which was expressly religious.  It was 

24 to support religious schools but through a tax credit.  

25 And the five member majority said that's not spending, 
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 1 that's allowing private individuals to put their money in 

 2 these programs and therefore it doesn't involve the 

 3 concern of Flast which is spending by the government in 

 4 support of religion even if only three pence.  

 5 The dissent -- the four rip into this and say 

 6 where before have we made a distinction between an 

 7 appropriation and a tax credit?  And they list these five 

 8 cases that involve tax credits.  And the issue was never 

 9 challenged, and there's this kind of discourse about 

10 who's being intellectually dishonest in this discussion 

11 kind of thing.  But the result of that case leaves us 

12 with our case is valid under Whitt.  We are talking about 

13 a small amount of spending authorized -- authorized by a 

14 bill that's entitled an act to allow a magistrate's 

15 assistant, Registrars of Deeds and Deputy Registrars of 

16 Deeds to recuse themselves from duties related to 

17 marriage due to sincerely held religious beliefs.  

18 On its face it has a religious purpose, and there 

19 is -- as you said, we brought this case when we learned 

20 that the magistrates in McDowell County had recused 

21 themselves and when through a FOIA request the television 

22 station here in Asheville obtained the evidence that they 

23 were being paid to move these people.  And we thought 

24 maybe we have a Flast standing to challenge this law.

25 The attorney general said the other part of the law that 
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 1 no one disputes is spending -- is this commitment or 

 2 authorization of spending is this commitment to spend 

 3 money to retirement -- for bridge retirement credit of 

 4 magistrates who refuse to perform duties of the 

 5 magistrate for religious reasons and then when they are 

 6 allowed to recuse themselves from marriage could apply 

 7 again because now they have a religious exemption from 

 8 their obligation to uphold their judicial oath.  That's, 

 9 at least on its face, arguably a colorable First 

10 Amendment spending violation.  

11 And under Wynn, when there's an enactment that 

12 authorizes even a small amount of spending in favor of 

13 religion, the taxpayers have standing to bring that 

14 claim.  And I'm going to sit and let Ms. Burke talk to 

15 you about the Fourteenth Amendment aspect of that.  But, 

16 again, it's from this language in Flast that says we do 

17 not limit this decision to establishment clause cases.  

18 And I think she's going to cite to you a free press tax 

19 case from Arkansas that found standing outside the 

20 establishment clause to challenge the spending bill.  So 

21 it's not that there's never been anything outside of 

22 spending but -- and then we have this unique situation.

23 THE COURT:  Where was that one in Arkansas?  What 

24 circuit was that in?  

25 MR.  LARGESS:  It's a U. S. Supreme Court case, 
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 1 and we'll give you that cite in a second.  So there is an 

 2 open door there that there's that language.  And there 

 3 have been no cases -- the litany I just took you through, 

 4 Judge, none of it involved the Bill of Rights or some 

 5 other provision that was potentially violated by the 

 6 legislative enactment.  That's what why we think, under 

 7 Flast, there is an opportunity for standing to bring a 

 8 challenge that violates the equal protection and due 

 9 process clause.  And the concern is in part what -- it's 

10 not in this face but as applied.  If these people are 

11 sort of hiding in plain sight who are disavowing the 

12 Fourteenth Amendment rights of constituents that appear 

13 before them, that really threatens the integrity of the 

14 judicial system.

15 THE COURT:  Are you okay then if they decide 

16 they'll go ahead and let the folks be known?  Does that 

17 take care of all that problem?  

18 MR.  LARGESS:  I don't know if it takes care of 

19 all of it, but it certainly would address the right of 

20 people to seek recusal which they have none now.  I'll 

21 let Ms. Burke address that further.

22 THE COURT:  Okay.  Yes, ma'am.  

23 MS.  BURKE:  Good morning, Your Honor, Meghann 

24 Burke for the plaintiffs.  As Mr.  Largess has pointed 

25 out, I'll be focusing my argument on the Fourteenth 
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 1 Amendment claim, recognizing the Court has some questions 

 2 and concerns about that.  It's not my intention to repeat 

 3 arguments that have been made.

 4 THE COURT:  On the standing issue.  In other 

 5 words, if you get past standing you may have -- you may 

 6 be able to survive dismissal -- 

 7 MS.  BURKE:  Understood.

 8 THE COURT:  -- and get further down the road.  But 

 9 standing is the door you've got to get through.

10 MS.  BURKE:  Understood.  And we contend, Your 

11 Honor, the Fourteenth Amendment is an additional 

12 limitation on the state's power to tax and spend under 

13 Flast v Cohen.  And our standing to proceed on those 

14 claims falls under Flast because it is precisely the 

15 expenditure of funds that facilitates the denial of equal 

16 protection of the laws and due process, as Mr.  Largess 

17 pointed out here, determinate of the judicial system.  

18 And the state, we contend, cannot under the Fourteenth 

19 Amendment deny animus under on the base of religious, not 

20 on Senate Bill II.  And what makes this case unique is 

21 that the judicial oath taken by magistrates who are 

22 judicial officials in the state of North Carolina 

23 reaffirms what is unique about this set of facts, because 

24 it is in the judicial setting where due process comes 

25 alive.
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 1 I would like to direct the Court's attention to 

 2 this particular language from Flast, and this is where we 

 3 rest our Fourteenth Amendment claim on.  Flast, of 

 4 course, holds that -- we hold that a taxpayer will have 

 5 standing consistent with Article III to invoke federal 

 6 judicial power when he alleges that here legislative 

 7 action under the taxing and spending clause.  It is in 

 8 derogation of those constitutional provisions which 

 9 operate to restrict the exercise of the taxing and 

10 spending power.  We contend, Your Honor, that the 

11 Fourteenth Amendment, the equal protection clause, 

12 restricts the taxing and spending of the North Carolina 

13 legislature to further an unconstitutional purpose which 

14 is to express animus against the gay and lesbian 

15 community.  And we did find this case.

16 THE COURT:  Is this displaying animus?  In other 

17 words, is that -- is it really displaying some kind of -- 

18 in and of itself anti-LGBT animus?  

19 MS.  BURKE:  I'm happy to go there.

20 THE COURT:  And the reason I ask that is, you 

21 know, these folks who were there when the law was -- when 

22 the law was overturned, passed and they had to start 

23 performing those things, they were -- you know, they were 

24 trying to be able to get them to be able to stay 

25 employed, I guess, is what they were trying to do, trying 



 75

 1 to help individuals keep their jobs.  I mean does that 

 2 have to have an animus?  

 3 MS.  BURKE:  That's a great question and I'd like 

 4 to address that.

 5 THE COURT:  By the way, I don't like the secret 

 6 thing.  I didn't realize that was in there, the part in 

 7 there where nobody knows who's who there.  I understand 

 8 that issue.  

 9 MS.  BURKE:  I'd like to address the religious 

10 accommodation issue because I think this court is well 

11 aware what the facts and circumstances are leading up to 

12 General Synod.  And prior to this court's ruling the 

13 North Carolina General Assembly criminalized the 

14 solemnization of marriages by clergy whose faith 

15 traditions affirmed the sanctity of marriages of people 

16 between the same sex.  Now suddenly they claim religious 

17 accommodation for government officials whose faith and 

18 traditions --

19 THE COURT:  Right.  But let's suppose for a minute 

20 that there was all this animus and everything and that 

21 they -- that the laws there were and all those things 

22 have been overturned.  Does everything they do after that 

23 try to -- to try to keep things sort of where they are, 

24 does everything just have to be -- is one side or the 

25 other always right and one side always wrong on every 
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 1 single issue in the world?  I mean that's part of where 

 2 we have become is to where everybody seems to be -- 

 3 rather than having an open discussion about these things, 

 4 you're either bad or good, and it's -- the rhetoric has 

 5 gotten huge.  

 6 I understand where you're going and that marriage 

 7 has been opened to everybody now in this country and that 

 8 battle has been won.  But now does everything that they 

 9 do to try to help folks that may have strongly held 

10 beliefs, has that become -- is all the animus of, hey, I 

11 understand that that's different from whether it's 

12 unconstitutional or not, but it doesn't have to be a bad 

13 motive behind something that might be unconstitutional.  

14 Good people can make mistakes and bad people can do the 

15 right thing, and good people can do the right thing, and 

16 bad people can make mistakes.  It's not -- everything is 

17 not --

18 MS.  BURKE:  I've appeared in this courtroom for 

19 folks -- I would contend the religious accommodation 

20 argument can only be taken seriously as the legislature's 

21 efforts to accommodate all religious views around the 

22 marriage clause and that simply wasn't the court's ruling 

23 in General Synod.  And I think there are a number of 

24 other factors that I think we can understand the context 

25 about around animus.  But what I would also point out is 
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 1 that what makes this case unique is when these 

 2 magistrates are recusing themselves they're acting in 

 3 their official capacities, not as private citizens who 

 4 certainly have a right to believe and worship however 

 5 they exist.  But when they are acting in their official 

 6 capacities they are the state, they are the government, 

 7 and that's where lines get drawn.  We would argue that is 

 8 heightened by the fact they are judicial officials where 

 9 these folks may have any number of occasions to come into 

10 a courtroom and be treated the same as anybody else and 

11 have the laws apply to them.  

12 I'd like to go back to the standing issue.

13 THE COURT:  I do, too, because that's the big -- 

14 MS.  BURKE:  I'll come back to this, but I do want 

15 to spend a little more time on standing.  We did find 

16 this case, Your Honor, Arkansas Riders Project v Ragland.  

17 It's a 1987 case.  The citation there is 481, U.S., 221.  

18 And in that case, standing was found on behalf of general 

19 interest magazines to perform a free exercise clause 

20 claim.  They intended there that a tax statute -- a tax 

21 that was imposed on them was a discriminatory tax, and 

22 the court did not actually see fit -- they didn't have to 

23 reach the Fourteenth Amendment claim that was brought 

24 because the case was disposed of under the free exercise 

25 clause and there was a violation found.  
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 1 So it's not uncommon to find standing on taxpayer 

 2 basis outside of the establishment clause context.  

 3 However, what we raise here is -- I would certainly 

 4 represent to the Court is a unique issue, and we contend 

 5 these are unique facts.  It is a unique case that perhaps 

 6 brings this Fourteenth Amendment restriction on a state's 

 7 power to tax and spend in a very unique and 

 8 particularized way.

 9 Of course the Court is well aware that the 

10 Fourteenth Amendment states that no state shall deny to 

11 any person within its jurisdiction the equal protection 

12 of the laws.  And under Romer v Evans, which Romer, 

13 Lawrence, Windsor, these are not cases you will see cited 

14 in defendant's brief and for good reason.  Because these 

15 are cases that clearly state the states cannot express 

16 moral disapproval of an entire people through its law 

17 making.  Of course, Romer v Evans, the 1996 case, 

18 repealed a law that had passed to restrict rights of the 

19 LGBT community in Colorado.  

20 Interestingly, similar arguments that are raised 

21 here today in this courtroom have been raised in every 

22 marriage equality case preceding it.  And the Romer v 

23 Evans case that preceded this series of cases, this idea 

24 that there is a religious objection that should be an 

25 exemption for state officials who are acting within their 
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 1 official capacities, is precisely the force of law that 

 2 gives operation animus which Romer prohibits.

 3 THE COURT:  If they left out the word religious 

 4 and said you don't have to do any marriages upon any 

 5 sincerely held objection, would you be okay with that 

 6 one?  

 7 MS.  BURKE:  I don't think I would, Your Honor, 

 8 no.

 9 THE COURT:  Why is that?  That doesn't make it 

10 religious.

11 MS.  BURKE:  It's a government official who's 

12 refusing to respect the Constitution.  And from the 

13 Fourteenth Amendment's perspective whatever the reason 

14 being -- 

15 THE COURT:  They're saying they're not going to 

16 perform any marriage for whatever -- you don't know 

17 exactly what their religious -- 

18 MS.  BURKE:  Let's go ahead and get into that, 

19 because I do think this is important.  There are at least 

20 half a dozen or so reasons why we know everyone -- this 

21 is a facially neutral statute.  Everyone in this 

22 courtroom knows that it is targeting gay and lesbian 

23 couples and gay and lesbian North Carolinians.

24 THE COURT:  Is it targeting, or is it trying to 

25 help those that don't believe in same sex marriage?  I 
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 1 mean how -- why I'm saying that is, if you had somebody 

 2 -- if somebody showed up at McDowell County and the 

 3 magistrates there -- all of them said we're not doing one 

 4 today, bingo.  But they've got it set up so that every 

 5 single same sex marriage couple is going to get married 

 6 whether they like it or not, whether the legislature 

 7 agrees with it or not.  They say they're going to -- it 

 8 will happen.  So how does that -- I know where this all 

 9 started from and I know the inceptions of it and I know 

10 where it all came from.  You don't have to tell me about 

11 it.  Everybody here knows that.  But in the end -- in the 

12 end, is this one targeting anybody other than trying to 

13 help these folks?  

14 I will say I don't know that they passed this or 

15 decided -- maybe the Administrative Office of the Courts 

16 came up with this particular standard where they are 

17 letting nobody know who's who.  I think that's a 

18 different thing, but I don't -- I'm not sure that they 

19 did that so that they could have people lying in wait for 

20 same sex couples coming in and looking for somebody to 

21 bump with their car and they go to small claims court and 

22 that person is waiting to shaft them.  I don't think 

23 they're trying to do that.

24 MS.  BURKE:  Well the first place I would start, 

25 Your Honor, is this court's ruling General Synod and 
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 1 Obergerfeld after it requires that marriage licenses be 

 2 issued --

 3 THE COURT:  Right.  

 4 MS.  BURKE:  Senate Bill II is not necessary.  

 5 That's a constitutional and legal requirement, and 

 6 there's a standing court order that makes that clear.

 7 THE COURT:  Right.

 8 MS.  BURKE:  We can end there.  But these are 

 9 government officials.  They've chosen to take an oath to 

10 uphold the Constitution, and that's what the Constitution 

11 --

12 THE COURT:  That argument I can do.  But I'm 

13 saying it doesn't have to necessarily -- an act which you 

14 say is unconstitutional doesn't necessarily have to be 

15 aimed at somebody to hurt them.  I mean this may -- this 

16 act appears to be -- maybe I'm missing something here -- 

17 appears to be to be helpful to those individuals who have 

18 disagreement with same sex marriage to the point they 

19 can't perform a civil duty at all with regard to that.  

20 They can't separate the render under Caesar the things 

21 that are Caesar and God that are God in the daily work.  

22 MS. BURKE:  And here we bleed into the First 

23 Amendment claim, because I would argue to that the state 

24 has picked a side in this debate.  They never tried to 

25 accommodate the clergy who affirmed these marriages.  
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 1 They actually criminalized that behavior as recently as 

 2 2014.

 3 THE COURT:  But those days those -- are the 

 4 thrilling days of yesteryear.  They're gone.

 5 MS.  BURKE:  It's important context for 

 6 understanding there's a two or three year gap here where 

 7 there is an accommodation for government officials, for 

 8 judicial officials --

 9 THE COURT:  Tell me how it hurts same sex couples 

10 if you know who they are and you get them to recuse.

11 MS.  BURKE:  Well I think that's assuming a fact 

12 not --

13 THE COURT:  I know that's a problem.

14 MS.  BURKE:  It is a problem.

15 THE COURT:  I don't see it in the statute.  There 

16 may be a statute and maybe I'm wrong about that, but I 

17 looked in the statute and don't see it.  I've got down 

18 the Administrative Office of the Court.

19 MS.  BURKE:  We do have a threshold problem.

20 THE COURT:  They may have overstepped or that may 

21 have been something they were allowed today do, but I 

22 don't know.  That bothers me.  I think everybody needs to 

23 know who everybody is.

24 MS.  BURKE:  That is exactly the point here that 

25 is the threshold problem that we don't know who those 
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 1 magistrates are, first of all.  Secondly, they're not 

 2 subject to the judicial standards commission, magistrates 

 3 are not.  And thirdly, these individuals, our clients, 

 4 Diane and Cathy and Kelly and Sonja could potentially be 

 5 before these magistrates for an eviction proceeding.  

 6 Certainly not alleging that this next thing is a fact in 

 7 issue in these folks' lives, but we know that domestic 

 8 violence is a common problem in our community; no less 

 9 true for the gay and lesbian community.  There could be 

10 an attempt to collect a debt, a small claims issue, any 

11 number of things where a citizen could appear before a 

12 magistrate and these individuals have no way of knowing 

13 whether or not this magistrate believes that the laws 

14 should apply equally to them whether or not this 

15 magistrate believes that this person is afforded and 

16 entitled to due process.  They've renounced it in some 

17 document we can't get our hands on, and that impairs the 

18 integrity of the judicial system in very grave, serious 

19 ways, and we contend that's where the Fourteenth 

20 Amendment imposes this restriction on the legislature's 

21 authority to tax and spend.  

22 THE COURT:  Let's get back to standing.

23 MS.  BURKE:  Yes, Your Honor.  I'd like to revisit 

24 that.

25 THE COURT:  To make that argument you've got to 
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 1 get past standing.

 2 MS.  BURKE:  I think Mr.  Largess has documented 

 3 the evolution of Flast standing.  And it is true that 

 4 Wynn and Hein and these cases -- Hein, that opinion I'm 

 5 sure Your Honor has studied and will study documents and 

 6 cases where the court did not extend standing beyond the 

 7 First Amendment establishment clause context.  So this is 

 8 a unique set of facts, and for that reason it's a unique 

 9 claim.  We certainly recognize that, and I wish I could 

10 point to the Court to say here's the case where the 

11 Fourteenth Amendment taxpayer standing under Flast was 

12 found.  We do not have that here.  We have the Arkansas 

13 Right of Project case.  But we contend, Your Honor, that 

14 this unique set of facts does present that issue.  

15 Those cases, Wynn and Hein, Mr.  Largess pointed 

16 out, addressed executive spending, administrative 

17 spending, tax credits, expenditures.  We contend the 

18 Fourteenth Amendment claim threads that meaning.  This is 

19 an expenditure by the legislature for a constitutionally 

20 prohibited purpose.  Your Honor is well aware that Flast 

21 has two elements to it and I won't go over the 

22 relationship or the nexus between the taxpayer standing 

23 and Senate Bill II because I believe Mr.  Largess has 

24 covered that.  But I do want to address the nexus between 

25 taxpayer status or client's taxpayer status and the 
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 1 precise nature of the constitutional infringement 

 2 alleged.  We've started to get into that a little bit, so 

 3 it's not my intention to retread that ground.  

 4 Your Honor these cases, Romer, Lawrence, Windsor 

 5 General Synod, affirm the dignity of gay and lesbian 

 6 people as a matter of law, not as a matter of opinion, 

 7 not as a matter of religious view but as a matter of law. 

 8 Gay and lesbian North Carolinians are entitled to the 

 9 same dignity as any other citizen in the state of North 

10 Carolina, and the force of law cannot be used to say 

11 anything less than that.  That's where we contend Senate 

12 Bill II runs afoul of constitutional dictas.

13 I'm happy to get into some of the other ways we 

14 can show animus here but I think it's important to note 

15 there is no secular purpose here.  The same arguments 

16 that haven't advanced in previous cases are being 

17 advanced here.  And those arguments about personal 

18 religious views were rejected by the Romer court, they 

19 were rejected by the Windsor court, and they were 

20 rejected by the Obergerfeld court because a force of law 

21 is what governs here.  I'll note that, as we allege in 

22 our complaint, Senator Buck Newton, who is a cosponsor of 

23 this bill, if there was any question about what this law 

24 was about, said:  I will not stand idly by and watch the 

25 demands of a few insist that a magistrate perform a 
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 1 wedding that he or she believes to be immoral.  And this 

 2 again puts us squarely within Romer v Evans, that moral 

 3 disapproval of a person is not a legitimate policymaking 

 4 motive.  

 5 I'd also point out that under Windsor, the fact 

 6 that this law is so unprecedented makes it 

 7 constitutionally suspect.  That was the issue of the 

 8 Defense of Marriage Act.  And Doma, in the Windsor case 

 9 -- it's often thought of as a Civil Rights case, which is 

10 absolutely true, and rightly so, but it's also a tax 

11 case.  Edie Windsor was forced to pay a tax bill to the 

12 tune of 300 and some thousand dollars that she would not 

13 have had to pay but for the animus that -- and moral 

14 disapproval that was expressed against her via the 

15 Defense of Marriage Act.  And of course, as this court 

16 knows well, the Supreme Court said that cannot stand 

17 constitutional muster that law was repealed.  And I think 

18 the timeline surrounding Senate Bill II is indeed 

19 significant.  

20 And I'd like to just briefly run through -- I'm 

21 sure the Court is well aware of some of these key facts 

22 but, of course, this court's ruling on October 10th 2014.  

23 Four days later, October 14th, the AOC general's counsel 

24 and Professor Cromwell from the School of Government 

25 issued an a memo and e-mail, respectively, saying 
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 1 magistrates have to perform these marriages as a matter 

 2 of law.  On that same day, two of our clients were 

 3 happily married following this court's ruling.  They're 

 4 also plaintiffs in that case.  They wanted to get married 

 5 here in their home state and in their home county.  And 

 6 that's a partly what animates our claims on behalf of 

 7 Kelly and Sonja and Diane and Cathy.  

 8 These are plaintiffs who reside in McDowell and 

 9 Swain Counties, the very counties where these refusals 

10 are happening they're a very close nexus between these 

11 refusals and the injuries these particular plaintiffs 

12 have suffered.  In the months following, upon 

13 information, we think roughly 32 magistrates resigned.  

14 We certainly cannot be certain, but the timing is} a 

15 little suspect as to why they may have resigned.  

16 November 5th 2014, the former AOC Director Smith 

17 responded to Senator Burger making clear that the law 

18 required magistrates to perform civil marriage 

19 ceremonies.  On January 28th, just a couple months after 

20 that, Senate Bill II was filed.  And, of course, the 

21 short title is magistrate's recusal of civil ceremonies.  

22 Days later, Magistrate Bumgarner filed a lawsuit, 

23 as in the papers in this case, against, interestingly, 

24 the former AOC Director Smith.  And I do think that's 

25 significant to the Court's question about who's the right 
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 1 defendant here.  Apparently, Magistrate Bumgarner thought 

 2 that was the appropriate defendant in her case.  On 

 3 February 25th, Senate Bill II was approved by the senate 

 4 shortly thereafter.  Director Smith announced his 

 5 retirement just days later.  Again, we'd like to get to 

 6 the phase of discovery in order to figure out and suss 

 7 out what are these facts?  What the particular facts that 

 8 tend to show or not animus?  

 9 On May 1st, Director Warren became the new 

10 director of the AOC and the House -- shortly thereafter, 

11 three or four weeks later, the House approved Senate Bill 

12 II.  Governor McCrory vetoed it on the same day, but the 

13 veto was overridden a week or two let later on June 11th 

14 2015.  And, critically, just over two weeks later, on 

15 June 25th 2015, Obergerfeld was decided which affirmed 

16 the dignity of gay and lesbian Americans.  Senate bill II 

17 had remained unchanged to this day.

18 Your Honor is well aware of the thorough canvass 

19 of history of race discrimination that Judge Schroeder 

20 did in the voting rights case that was recently decided 

21 by the Fourth Circuit.  And he did an excellent job 

22 documenting critical facts that aided the Fourth Circuit 

23 in coming to its conclusion to reverse that.

24 THE COURT:  Yeah.  They said normally they'd send 

25 it back but he had given them such great information.  
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 1 Judge Schroeder is a very thorough judge.

 2 MS.  BURKE:  He indeed was.  And in this case, the 

 3 Fourth Circuit -- and in reversing him they made an 

 4 important point:  In holding the legislature did not 

 5 enact the challenge provisions with discriminatory 

 6 intent, the court seems to have missed the forest in 

 7 carefully surveying the many trees.  We contend, Your 

 8 Honor, there are many trees here.  

 9 Our due process arguments do overlap with the full 

10 protection claim, but I do want to point out these 

11 magistrates are judicial officials who take an oath to 

12 uphold the U. S. Constitution as it's been interpreted by 

13 the U. S. supreme Court in all the cases that I've cited 

14 and Senate Bill II violates the right of meaningful 

15 access to the courts that our courts have a proud history 

16 and tradition of recognizing.

17 I'm happy to answer any questions Your Honor has, 

18 but I don't want to repeat arguments that have already 

19 been made.  I'll just conclude by saying that the 

20 purported religious disavow of the Fourteenth Amendment 

21 by judicial officials cannot circumvent the equal 

22 protection clause and due process clause.  We ask this 

23 court to deny the motions to dismiss.  

24 THE COURT:  Thank you.

25 MR.  LARGESS:  Let me just quickly go through the 
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 1 remaining issues, if I could, Your Honor.  I think that 

 2 -- but say this first.  I was looking for the provision 

 3 that makes it a confidential personnel matter for the 

 4 recusal decision and was unable to find it.  We will look 

 5 for that and send it to you.  

 6 THE COURT:  I'm interested in that because that's 

 7 something I'm bothered by.  I always think it's better to 

 8 be open about things so everybody understands where 

 9 everybody's coming from.  

10 MR.  LARGESS:  I also took a chance to read 

11 through Moss -- found that case and looked at it.  I 

12 realize the reason I had not looked at it before is it's 

13 not a taxpayer standing case.  It's an actual injury case 

14 where a person who was not a Christian got solicited by 

15 the school district for the opportunity for this after 

16 school religious program, and that was an injury -- a 

17 recognized injury.  So I think that the cases are 

18 distinct -- 

19 THE COURT:  Yeah.  Most of the taxpayer standing 

20 cases, they've occasionally allowed establishment clause.  

21 You can't find anything on Fourteenth Amendment right 

22 now, as counsel's pointed out -- and there may be some 

23 after this, but this court's not going to move -- where 

24 I'm really looking at it right now is the -- is whether 

25 there's standing in the establishment clause issue.  
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 1 That's really where I'm looking at it.  The Fourth 

 2 Circuit may -- I don't know what the Fourth Circuit will 

 3 do one way or another as to whoever appeals this 

 4 decision.  But they will -- I can tell you they're smart 

 5 people up there.  They'll look at it and they'll make a 

 6 call.  And my guess is ultimately it will get to the 

 7 Supreme Court.

 8 MR.  LARGESS:  Let me explain again, Your Honor, 

 9 just about Wynn just so you understand, because that's 

10 the key to this standing.  And that is, the dissent said 

11 this is $50 million a year that affects this Arizona 

12 state budget.  How can that not be a spending issue?  And 

13 the response was, it's not spending.  And if it's 

14 spending, it can only be, again, that three pence 

15 argument is all that you need and we have that here.  We 

16 have the -- it's not that the spending is incidental in 

17 amount.  It's incidental to the legislation.  Here it's 

18 the core of the legislation that if magistrates recuse 

19 themselves so that we have a county where no one is 

20 willing to do the marriages, you, Mr.  Warren, are going 

21 to bring in someone.  You're authorized and directed to 

22 follow this law and make sure there's someone there to 

23 protect the religious views of those magistrates and not 

24 force them.

25 THE COURT:  Just get one of those superior court 
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 1 judges to do the marriages.

 2 MR.  LARGESS:  Well there are all different sorts 

 3 of ways of dealing with it, Your Honor.

 4 THE COURT:  You don't have to bring anybody in or 

 5 spend any money.  They've got a little bit of time.  

 6 MR.  LARGESS:  But for our purposes the fact is 

 7 that they have spent the money and it was authorized by 

 8 the legislature for a religious purpose, and that is 

 9 Flast.  That's why we have standing.  

10 Now in terms of the other issues of whether we've 

11 stated a claim.  I mean this is a statute that on its 

12 face has a religious purpose.  Its effect is religious to 

13 protect the religious sensibilities of these magistrates.

14 THE COURT:  So if they just took out the word 

15 "religious," then we wouldn't have any problem at all.  

16 Is that what you're saying?  Well if you don't have to do 

17 marriages, period, for any -- how is it worded?  Let me 

18 see how they worded it.  "Sincerely held objection" as 

19 opposed to "sincerely held religious objection," would it 

20 be okay.

21 MR.  LARGESS:  I don't know if you'd have a First 

22 Amendment claim there.  I think you'd have to pierce it 

23 because the only objection is a religious one, Your 

24 Honor, so I think that you what you're getting at.

25 THE COURT:  Why would it be a religious one?  Some 
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 1 people may just -- I mean people have all kinds of 

 2 objections to all kinds of things.  And whether you or I 

 3 think something is perfectly fine doesn't mean somebody 

 4 else doesn't think that.  And they're entitled to believe 

 5 that.  And it may not be a religious experience.  It may 

 6 just be I don't like that.  I mean somebody may have an 

 7 idea that they just don't like something.  We differ on 

 8 things all over the place in this world.

 9 MR.  LARGESS:  We do, Your Honor.

10 THE COURT:  That's why we're such a wonderful 

11 world of different people and different ideas.  And, you 

12 know, this country's a very, very strong country because 

13 of that.  So if they left the word religious out would 

14 that -- I mean a lot of them would -- a lot of them, I 

15 agree with you, would probably be for religious.  And 

16 most people who are going to say that doesn't bother me.  

17 That's one of my duties.  If that's the job I've sworn to 

18 do, if that's the job I put my hand on the Bible and said 

19 I swear to follow the United States Constitution, I'll be 

20 able to do that.  But there may be people that say North 

21 Carolina is saying we want to help some of these folks 

22 and still allow the United States Constitution to be 

23 followed by North Carolina by making sure somebody is 

24 there to perform these marriages that the law now 

25 requires.  
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 1 MR.  LARGESS:  The third prong of Lemon, Your 

 2 Honor, if I may, in terms of the way the statute reads 

 3 currently which is the statute we're challenging is there 

 4 can't be excessive entanglement between the state and 

 5 religion.  Here you have this elaborate process to 

 6 promote and protect the religious views of people who 

 7 refuse to accept the Constitution.  That's excessive 

 8 entanglement of religious beliefs with the function of 

 9 judges.  So I think we've stated a claim under Lemon.  

10 I think the statute is invalid on its face, Your 

11 Honor, but we can get to that later after you deal with 

12 whether we have standing.  But the other issue is, who is 

13 the right defendant?  Is there a special relationship 

14 here?  He is the Director of Administrative Office of the 

15 Courts.  He wouldn't answer who's the Director of the 

16 Judicial Department?  Admitted that his bookkeeper would 

17 be the one writing the checks to the retirement system.  

18 He is the person who has the connection who's 

19 implementing this law.

20 THE COURT:  Let me ask you about venue while 

21 you're standing up.  Why is this case being held here 

22 instead of being brought in Raleigh?  There's good judges 

23 down in Raleigh.  There's some good ones in Greensboro.  

24 Why is this one being brought in Asheville?  

25 MR.  LARGESS:  We discovered the spending in 
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 1 McDowell County.  We believe the statute is a challenge 

 2 to your ruling in this district about Amendment One, so 

 3 there are issues related.

 4 THE COURT:  My ruling was for -- my ruling ended 

 5 up being for the whole state.  

 6 MR.  LARGESS:  It did.  But it took place here, 

 7 Your Honor.  And what they did in their argument about it 

 8 is very simple.  They cited all these cases before the 

 9 venue statute was changed.  You can have venue in 

10 multiple jurisdictions.  All of these HB-2 cases are in 

11 the Middle District, not in the Eastern.  So the issue is 

12 we have pointed to substantial activity that took place 

13 in this district.  Even if so, we could bring it here 

14 even if we could also bring it in Raleigh.  It's simple.  

15 I think Mr.  Warren is the proper defendant, and I think 

16 we have standing, and we've stated a claim.  

17 MS.  VYSOTSKAYA:  Your Honor, I will try to follow 

18 up on several points that I heard recurring throughout 

19 this conversation.  Number one, Your Honor, you 

20 identified the most important issue in this case and it 

21 goes back to the federal court's power under Article III 

22 of the United States Constitution to hear only cases and 

23 controversies.  Not to hear things about everything that 

24 is wrong with any kind of legislative provisions but to 

25 hear only cases and controversies when a party is injured 
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 1 actually injured in fact.  And as we argued before, that 

 2 is absolute here.

 3 Plaintiffs argued that establishment -- 

 4 establishment clause is standing.  It's incorrect.  Every 

 5 single establishment clause that is cited in plaintiff's 

 6 briefs or in our briefs only provide a taxpayer spending 

 7 where legislatures specifically established a tax 

 8 problem.  There was always a large sum of money involved, 

 9 there was always a program specific programs that took 

10 money from a taxpayer and put it into a treasury then 

11 took the money from the treasury and put it towards 

12 religious or sectarian institutions.  Here that is not 

13 occurring at all.  We don't have a specific taxing and 

14 spending program that is being established in Senate Bill 

15 II.  And we don't have any money going to any sectarian 

16 entity.  The money is going to a state employee, not for 

17 support of any religion.  It's just going to state 

18 employee under this bill.

19 THE COURT:  But it is for, apparently, religious 

20 objections.  That's -- I mean that's what the law says.  

21 The law says based upon any sincerely held religious 

22 objection.

23 MS.  VYSOTSKAYA:  But that does not amount to an 

24 establishment of religion.  In that case, if you took 

25 that position --
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 1 THE COURT:  Establish over non-religion -- over 

 2 non-religion.  I know you can argue I'm Agnostic, I'm 

 3 Atheist, I don't have any religion.  And therefore, 

 4 because I don't have any religion, you know -- I mean you 

 5 can go ahead and convolute something to the point.

 6 MS.  VYSOTSKAYA:  It really does not.  Magistrates 

 7 are free to believe or not to believe whatever they -- 

 8 whatever their religious beliefs or nonbeliefs allow them 

 9 to believe.  SB-2 does not change that situation 

10 whatsoever.  It does not establish religion at all.  All 

11 it does -- and it has been found to be permissible in the 

12 Supreme Court precedence.  All it does is it allows 

13 accommodations for religious beliefs of the magistrates.  

14 If you went by the logic that is suggested by 

15 plaintiffs, they would never be ever, ever any kind of 

16 religious accommodations that would be proper.  Any time 

17 the word religion is uttered, as Your Honor asked a very 

18 good question.  If you took the word religion out of the 

19 statute would be that be okay then?  So is religion a 

20 magical word?  I don't think the Supreme Court precedent 

21 supports that position at all.

22 THE COURT:  All right.  Let me ask you another 

23 question then.  Where is this located for this where you 

24 get to secretly keep the fact that you are -- I mean that 

25 needs to be -- people need to know what's going on so 
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 1 that if they believe that someone might have an animus 

 2 against them, if there's some kind of bad mind in terms 

 3 of how they feel -- and I'm not saying that all -- lots 

 4 of these folks are really, really good folks who have 

 5 sincerely held beliefs, but so do the folks who are 

 6 coming in looking to have their problems redressed.  

 7 It's not for me to decide who's right and wrong on 

 8 all of these moral issues.  That's for days -- bigger  

 9 bigger judges at the Supreme Court of the United States 

10 to decide that.  I can't decide that part.  But the good 

11 folks coming in -- and there may be some good folks 

12 there, but they may be worried about it.  Don't they have 

13 a right to know that the folks -- that the person who was 

14 hearing their case has such a strongly held belief that 

15 they have recused themselves from doing a judicial duty 

16 of their office?  Don't they have a right to know that?  

17 And if it's -- and where is it in the law?  Or is it just 

18 in the Administrative Office of the Courts doing this 

19 because somebody called them up and said -- some 

20 legislator called them up and said that would be a good 

21 idea to do that?  I mean tell me about that.

22 MS.  VYSOTSKAYA:  Yes, Your Honor.  I will not be 

23 able to answer a question whether certain legislature 

24 called --

25 THE COURT:  I know you aren't.  I'm being -- I 
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 1 always wonder how these weeds get thrown into the garden.  

 2 But where is that?  

 3 MS.  VYSOTSKAYA:  Let me answer the question in 

 4 several different ways.  First of all, I would like to 

 5 point out that it's not in Senate Bill II, which is the 

 6 only bill that is being challenged by plaintiffs here.  

 7 So to the extent they want to challenge the 

 8 confidentiality provision, a different law would have to 

 9 be challenged.  It would have to be --

10 THE COURT:  So after Senate Bill II somebody said 

11 we've got to keep this quiet or something.  

12 MS.  VYSOTSKAYA:  Your Honor, I know that on the 

13 magistrate recusal form there is a reference to North 

14 Carolina Personnel Act.  So it could be in Chapter 126.  

15 I'm not certain about that having not --

16 THE COURT:  You know, people have -- there are 

17 things that are protected for personnel, but there are 

18 also some things that would be overreaching to try to 

19 protect everything about everybody under the idea that 

20 everything they do in their job is secret.  I mean I 

21 don't think we run the country that way.  That's why we 

22 have the Freedom of Information Act.

23 MS.  VYSOTSKAYA:  I understand the Court's concern 

24 100%.

25 THE COURT:  I'm not saying that anybody would do 
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 1 anything, but people ought to know.  I mean it ought to 

 2 be laid out on the table.  Look.  Yes, I'm going to hear 

 3 your case on this and I have had a problem with, but I 

 4 will be able to hear your case fairly.  And they may say 

 5 I would rather somebody else hear it.  And that person 

 6 would probably recuse because they would wouldn't want 

 7 any decision they made to be questioned if somebody 

 8 really wanted them to recuse.  But they may not.  They 

 9 may think, man, this person is fair.  They may disagree 

10 with me on this but they can still be fair.  Again, 

11 there's no reason for everybody to be against everybody.  

12 I mean sometimes we can have disagreements on issues and 

13 nobody's bad.  We can disagree in this country.  

14 MS.  VYSOTSKAYA:  I absolutely understand that 

15 concern, and it may be an issue for a different case next 

16 time when the situation --

17 THE COURT:  I'm thinking about it now.  I mean 

18 really, you know, this -- it impacts this bill.

19 MS.  VYSOTSKAYA:  Well that's not in Senate Bill 

20 II.

21 THE COURT:  No.  It impacts it if somebody has 

22 decided that is a -- is implicated here, then that's -- 

23 you know, that impacts how it's used or how it will be 

24 used.  Again, I know your argument is that nothing has 

25 happened yet but, you know, same sex couples are going to 
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 1 go in in front of magistrates for matters all the time.  

 2 They're correct about that.  And that's something -- the 

 3 fact that somebody may be against that relationship and 

 4 have a strong feeling against that relationship beyond 

 5 just I don't like that relationship.  I don't like that 

 6 relationship so bad I'm recusing from doing this thing.  

 7 They may -- there may be a -- you know, it seems they 

 8 would be entitled to know that.  

 9 MS.  VYSOTSKAYA:  Your Honor, I don't think that 

10 they won't be able to find that information out.  They 

11 would have to apply -- they would have to move and get an 

12 order, even if -- even if such provision exists in the 

13 Personnel Records Act, they would be -- if they suspect, 

14 again, the judge is treating them impartial based on what 

15 they observed during the proceedings, and if they suspect 

16 that that is being done because of animus towards same 

17 sex couples, nothing would prevent them to apply or to 

18 get an order and to get that record under the court order 

19 and review it.  I don't think that would be prohibited.  

20 But you have to have an injury.  You have to have 

21 something.  You can't just -- in other words, you have to 

22 have something to base that request upon.  But I 

23 understand Your Honor's concern on that issue.

24 Let me get back into the standing again.  As far 

25 as all the establishment clause cases they were all based 
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 1 upon a specific taxing and spending clause which is not 

 2 here.  And the last case contains language that says 

 3 incidental spending is not going to give taxpayers their 

 4 status.  It's in Flast, it's in Wynn, it's in Cuno.

 5 THE COURT:  What do you say about his claim -- 

 6 plaintiff's claim that this is a straight up 

 7 constitutional issue?  These people have taken an oath to 

 8 follow the United States Constitution, the United States 

 9 Constitution, the case that the Supreme Court has ruled 

10 that same sex marriage is constitutionally permitted and 

11 that these folks are violating their oath in not 

12 following the United States Constitution.  What do you 

13 think about that?  The Fourth Circuit is going to talk 

14 about that a little bit.

15 MS.  VYSOTSKAYA:  My answer to that would be that 

16 the United States Constitution does not contain the 

17 provisions that requires magistrates to marry couples at 

18 all.  What contains that provision is a state law.  And 

19 what Senate Bill II is doing is changing the requirement 

20 from, you know, having every magistrate having a duty to 

21 perform a marriage to a group of magistrates within the 

22 district to perform a marriage.  I don't think the United 

23 States Constitution prohibits that.  

24 THE COURT:  Okay.  

25 MS.  VYSOTSKAYA:  As far as the Fourteenth 
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 1 Amendment issue, Your Honor.  Let me just state that in 

 2 he Hein case, which is a 2011 case from the United States 

 3 Supreme Court.  The Supreme Court specifically stated 

 4 that we refused to lower the taxpayer status to any case 

 5 outside of the establishment clause case.  There was one 

 6 case that was cited, the free press case.  I have not 

 7 read it.  But by the description of it, it sounded like 

 8 plaintiffs there had actual injury that the specific free 

 9 press rights were prohibited.  Therefore, they would have 

10 met the standing regardless of the establishment clause.  

11 They would have met standing that all of us discussed 

12 during the first part of our conversation.  

13 And Your Honor, moreover, if that was true, if the 

14 standing for the Fourteenth Amendment purposes was 

15 taxpayer standing, then why have the requirement that in 

16 order to meet the Fourteenth Amendment challenge?  A 

17 plaintiff has to show that there is a justification, the 

18 court has to provide proper scrutiny standard, then that 

19 test is not just not needed.  If all you produce is to 

20 have that taxpayer standing then tall other cases that 

21 the Supreme Court and Fourth Circuit and Your Honor's 

22 court has decided using your regular classification and 

23 level of scrutiny type of test would be a surplussage.

24 Finally, I wanted to -- I wanted to also make a 

25 reference to the extent the Court is interested on that 
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 1 extensive entanglement with the religion that plaintiff 

 2 was discussing.  And I think what they're basing it on is 

 3 the language in Senate Bill II that says "sincerely held 

 4 religious beliefs," rather than "religious beliefs."  So 

 5 the word "sincerely" is emphasized.  That's what I read 

 6 from their brief.  And Your Honor, Senate Bill II does 

 7 not require magistrates to prove sincerity.  All they 

 8 have to do is to fill out the form and read it as is.  

 9 Number two, the Supreme Court also talked about 

10 this in one -- in one of the cases.  It was a case that 

11 involved the religious land use.  And asking, basically, 

12 a magistrate whether you sincerely hold that belief is 

13 different than asking a magistrate is that belief central 

14 to your case?  That would be extensive entanglement.  

15 Simply asking, do you truly have that belief?  is not 

16 extensive entanglement at all.  It's not entanglement at 

17 all.  And, as applied, there are no facts stating, you 

18 know, in this case which would show that any magistrate 

19 was denied the recusal based on sincerity or insincerity 

20 of that person's belief.  And moreover would plaintiffs 

21 be, really, the right party to even question that 

22 sincerity requirement?  Or would the proper party be a 

23 magistrate whose sincerity was questioned by the state, 

24 if that's what the decision is based on.

25 And, Your Honor, on the venue issue.  First of 
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 1 all, the cases -- we cited some of them -- were pre-1990s 

 2 amendments cases.  Some were post amendment cases, 

 3 especially in our transactional venue argument in our 

 4 brief.  And plaintiffs have not addressed all those cases 

 5 at all.  But to emphasize substantial part of events that 

 6 lead to a claim have to occur in the district where the 

 7 venue is, you know, being requested.  

 8 And spending, I don't think that it's a 

 9 substantial type of event.  I mean if you look at the 

10 events that are really being challenged in this lawsuit, 

11 it's a passage of Senate Bill II which occurred in 

12 Raleigh in the Eastern District.  It's the debates that 

13 surround that passage of the act.  And several times the 

14 opposing counsel brought up some comments that were made 

15 by legislatures that occurred in Raleigh as well.  So we 

16 would submit to Your Honor that not only the defendant 

17 Warren resides in the Middle District, which would 

18 support our venue position under the first prong of the 

19 federal statute, but also the substantial events occurred 

20 in that venue as well.  And I'm sure my co-counsel may 

21 have a couple of comments.  

22 MR.  MAJMUNDAR:  Just briefly, Your Honor, with 

23 respect to the confidentiality provisions.  It's going to 

24 be in Chapter 126(A).  I have been a state employment, to 

25 my amazement, for 15 years and I still don't understand 
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 1 it.  I do know, however, that my personnel record -- if a 

 2 member of the public or whoever, a future prospective 

 3 employer wants information out of my record, my employer 

 4 is permitted to tell them that I was employed between 

 5 date X and date Y, my salary, and that I left in good 

 6 standing or that I am in good standing and that's it, 

 7 absent a court order, compelling production of that 

 8 record.

 9 THE COURT:  Yeah.  But this is something where 

10 somebody is saying they're not going to perform -- in 

11 other words, I think if you were -- if your employer -- 

12 if you were to say I'm working for the attorney general 

13 but I'm not going to court on such and such matters that 

14 the people would be entitled to know that.  I think 

15 that's going to be some kind of secret.  That is not a 

16 good personnel -- that's not a good law to let people be 

17 able to keep information from public view about those 

18 kinds of matters.  

19 Yes, I've got plenty of things about that they 

20 can't say anything about me.  But when litigants come in 

21 to me they've got to know they're going to get a fair 

22 shot, and they need to know.  And I've got -- if I'm 

23 recused, I'm recused.  I'm out of those cases.  As I 

24 said, it ended up as to how I got this case.  And I'm 

25 sure if I found there was no venue, the people in the 
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 1 Middle and Eastern District, my fellow judges would never 

 2 speak to me again.  But the -- but I think that's -- you 

 3 know, that's not something that should be hidden.  That's 

 4 not a personnel matter that ought to be hidden.  They 

 5 just need to say it doesn't have to be -- they're not 

 6 asking them to tell what their belief is.  They're just 

 7 saying they have one.  They don't have to write out a 

 8 paragraph about this is why and all that kind of 

 9 information.  They just say they have a sincerely held 

10 religious belief.

11 MR.  MAJMUNDAR:  I understand your viewpoint.  I'm 

12 only trying to describe this source material from where 

13 the confidentiality arises.

14 THE COURT:  I understand.  I think that was a 

15 swing and a miss by somebody that put that under the 

16 Personnel Act.

17 MR.  MAJMUNDAR:  It may be.  Maybe to my benefit 

18 it's in there.  Anyway, the second kind of part of this 

19 is plaintiffs have stood up and said these people.  These 

20 people did this.  These people did that.  I'm not sure 

21 they're talking about the current defendant but they're 

22 talking about a collection of individuals who, in the 

23 course of the last number of years, have acted and 

24 pronounced things in a certain way that might reflect 

25 insensitivity or animus.  Okay?  And I understand that.  
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 1 THE COURT:  There are some who said nothing and 

 2 there are some who said some things, yes.

 3 MR.  MAJMUNDAR:  Exactly.  And Your Honor, I could 

 4 appear before a magistrate, any magistrate who has not 

 5 recused themselves, and they may have an inherent bias 

 6 against me for whatever reason, and I will never know 

 7 that unless I perceive their behavior to be untoward for 

 8 some reason.  And in that instance I have the ability to 

 9 bring a grievance to the chief district court judge.  So 

10 the existence of bias -- I think everybody has some 

11 measure of bias about some issue or another.  We don't 

12 always know when we're standing up before a magistrate or 

13 a judge or whomever, a panel of jurists, as to whether or 

14 not they have bias toward us.  We have to have faith in 

15 their ability to do their job in an unbiased manner.  

16 There may be a gay magistrate who doesn't appreciate my 

17 lifestyle, the way I live my life, and they may have 

18 bias, and it should not matter.

19 THE COURT:  I understand.  And I have no doubt 

20 that some -- maybe all of them can give fair hearings to 

21 anyone regardless of how they feel about their particular 

22 marital state.  But with that said, people ought to know 

23 that -- where there might be a possibility.  Because this 

24 is a strong -- this is going to be a strongly enough held 

25 belief that it is a sincere religious objection.  It's a 
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 1 strongly held belief.

 2 MR.  MAJMUNDAR:  I agree, Your Honor.  Counsel has 

 3 made impassioned, compelling arguments to the Court 

 4 today.  They were better suited to be presented to the 

 5 court in General Synod.  They're the General Synod 

 6 arguments.  That issue has been decided and it was 

 7 decided by Your Honor.  And what's notable about that 

 8 order -- it's pithy.  But what's notable is at the end 

 9 you pointed out specifically that this is not a moral 

10 issue, this is not a political issue, this is a legal 

11 issue, and you emphasized the word "legal."

12 What we're talking about is the modalities of 

13 Senate Bill II.  We're not talking about animus for 

14 people for years, going back generations perhaps.  There 

15 is a long line of cases -- it's true, they're in Romer 

16 and Lawrence and Windsor.  There is a long line of cases 

17 and they all have established a jurisprudence in this 

18 country with respect to the constitutional rights of 

19 those who are same sex partners who wish to get married.  

20 THE COURT:  They have.

21 MR.  MAJMUNDAR:  There is nothing about SB-II that 

22 serves to subvert that right.  We're talking about the 

23 legalities, not the moralities, and not the political.

24 THE COURT:  Thank you.  All right.  

25 MR.  LARGESS:  Two things, Your Honor, just 



110

 1 quickly.

 2 THE COURT:  All right.

 3 MR.  LARGESS:  The statute 126.4 is the state law 

 4 that says a personnel act -- personnel files are 

 5 confidential, and it lists who can have access to them.  

 6 So they've just considered it.  And on the form, the 

 7 recusal form, it says this is a personal file.  Do not 

 8 file with the clerk.

 9 On this last point that's exactly why it's 

10 repudiation of your law, Judge.  Senate Bill II is a 

11 moral objection to your legal ruling that these people 

12 have a moral right based on their religious views to not 

13 follow the Constitution, and we're going to spend money 

14 to allow them to do that.  And even the people who are 

15 offended by their beliefs have to contribute to their 

16 beliefs, and that's the fundamental problem here.  

17 THE COURT:  Again, if they left out "religious," 

18 then you really wouldn't have anything religious on 

19 there.  It would just be a "sincerely held belief" 

20 objection.  It would still be the same, it would still 

21 be, in terms of what you're saying, but you wouldn't have 

22 any establishment clause issues.

23 MR.  LARGESS:  We would not.  It would be whether 

24 a moral objection to the Constitution is sufficient for a 

25 -- for a judge to avoid the duties of office.  I don't 
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 1 know how you get standing to bring that case.  The 

 2 problem here, they did limit it to religious beliefs and 

 3 that's what gives us -- 

 4 THE COURT:  I will say this.  I appreciate all of 

 5 the excellent attorneys that have been in this case.  The 

 6 legal documents and writing writings that have been filed 

 7 are excellent, and the arguments have been well stated 

 8 today.  The Court will talk about this and make a 

 9 decision.  Now, in order of what we're going to do is in 

10 terms of taking a de novo look at intervention in this 

11 case.  The Court is going to enter an order pretty quick 

12 on that so that you-all will be able to do whatever you 

13 want to do -- react to that before the Court makes a move 

14 on what it's going to do in this.  And then if the -- if 

15 there's going to be any -- if you-all are going to be 

16 allowed to intervene, then we will -- we'll have another 

17 hearing if you're allowed.  If not, then I'll be ready to 

18 go.  Yes, sir.

19 MR.  BOYLE:  Your Honor, could I just make one 

20 comment?  

21 THE COURT:  Yes, sir.

22 MR.  BOYLE:  In listening to the arguments -- I 

23 think that it becomes clearer, after listening to these 

24 arguments, that the magistrates that are my clients would 

25 benefit from representing themselves and talking about 
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 1 the oath of their office and the constitutionality of it 

 2 and talking about the positions that the attorney general 

 3 has taken in this case that are, again, adverse to the 

 4 positions that my clients are taking in other cases.  I 

 5 just wanted to say that after this argument I think it 

 6 makes it even more clear to my clients' position.

 7 THE COURT:  I understand your position and you-all 

 8 are well representing your clients.  I just disagree in 

 9 terms of this venue.  This hearing, with this particular 

10 issue, I think, is best handled by the state.  And I 

11 think you-all certainly may have some claims and may -- 

12 depending on how everything shakes out may have some 

13 lawsuits to bring with regard to that sort of thing, but 

14 I do not think this is the proper forum for your 

15 positions in this particular case as well stated as you 

16 can make them.  I mean you-all have done a good job doing 

17 that.  So let me come down and see everybody and then 

18 we'll be moving on.

19 (Off the record at 12:15 p.m.)
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